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Vision

“Contribute to the building of a peaceful and better world by educating youth through sport 

practices without discrimination of any form whatsoever and Olympic and in the Olympic spirit, 

which requires mutual understanding with a spirit of friendship, solidarity and fair play”

Mission

“Develop, promote and protect the Olympic Movement in Sri Lanka, in accordance with the 

Olympic Charter”

Also committed to propagate Sports in Sri Lanka and thereby to achieve unity and brotherhood 

among the different communities living in Sri Lanka and to promote sportsmanship and healthy 

competition in the World Sports Arena
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a)	 To develop, promote and protect the Olympic Movement in Sri Lanka in accordance with the Olympic Charter 

and all regulations and directives issued by the IOC

b)	 To promote facilitate and develop Sports in general in Sri Lanka

c)	 To foster and promote Olympism in Sri Lanka

d)	 To observe, protect and uphold the Olympic Charter and the Rules and Regulations laid down in the Olympic 

Charter

e)	 To disseminate among young people an interest in Sport and Sporting spirit

f)	 To propagate the fundamental principles of Olympism at national level within the frame work of sporting 

activity and otherwise contribute among other things to the diffusion of Olympism in the teaching program of 

physical education and sport in schools and university establishments

g)	 To be engaged in the establishment and activities of a Sri Lanka Olympic Academy, an Olympic museum and 

cultural programs related to the Olympic Movement

h)	 To undertake the training of Sports Administrators to ensure the propagation of the Fundamental Principles 

of Olympism

i)	 To encourage the development of high performance sport as well as sport for all

j)	 To commit itself to taking action against any form to discrimination in sport on the grounds of race, religion, 

politics, sex or otherwise and against any form of violence in sport

k)	 To adapt and implement the World Anti-Doping Code as stipulated in the World Anti-Doping convention, 

thereby ensuring that the committee’s Anti-Doping policies and rules, membership and or funding 

requirements and result management procedures, confirm to the World Anti-Doping Code and respect all the 

roles and responsibilities for National Olympic Committees that are listed within the World Anti-Doping Code

l)	 To encourage and support measures relating to the medical care and health of Athletes

m)	 To ensure through respective National Sport Organizations the preparation and selection of the athletes, 

thereby ensuring that the country is represented at the Olympic Games, Commonwealth Games, Asian 

Games, South Asian Games, Winter Olympic Games and any other regional, continental or inter-continental 

Games having the patronage of the IOC. The committee has exclusively authority for the representation of 

Sri Lanka at the Olympic Games and at the regional, continental or world multi-sports competitions patronize 

by the IOC. In addition, the committee is obliged to participate in the games of Olympiad by sending athletes. 

The committee shall constitute, organized and lead its respective delegation at the Olympic Games and at the 

regional, continental or world multi-sport competitions patronized by the IOC. The committee shall decide 

upon the entry of athletes proposed by respective National Federations. Such selections shall be based not 

only on sport performance of the athlete but also on his ability to serve as an example to the sporting youth 

of his country. The committee must ensure that the all entries proposed by the National Federations for the 

Olympic Games comply in all respects with provisions of the Olympic Charter. The committee is responsible 

for the behaviour of the members of the delegation.

GENERAL OBJECTIVES OF THE NOC SRI LANKA 
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n)	 To undertake the organization of the games when they are held in Sri Lanka

o)	 To maintain the highest level of good governance, accountability and transparency

p)	 To preserve its autonomy and resist all pressures of any kind, including but not limited to political, legal, 

religious or economic pressures which may prevent it from complying with the Olympic Charter.

q)	 In order to fullfill its mission, to cooperate with governmental bodies, with which it shall achieve harmonious 

relations. However, it shall not associate itself with any activity, which would be in contradiction with the 

Olympic Charter. The committee may also cooperate with non-governmental bodies.

r)	 The committee may only use the Olympic symbol, flag, motto and anthem (which are the exclusive property 

of the IOC) within the frame work of its no-profit-making activities provided such use contributes to the 

development of the Olympic Movement and does not detract from its dignity, and provided that it has obtained 

the prior approval of the IOC, in accordance with the Olympic Charter. All Olympic properties including but 

not limited to Olympic symbol, flag, motto, anthem, identifications (including but not limited to the “Olympic 

Games” and “Games of the Olympiad”), designation, emblems, flame, and torches, and all rights to any and 

all Olympic properties, as well as all rights to the use thereof, belong exclusively to the IOC. The committee is 

responsible to the IOC for the observance, in Sri Lanka, of rules 7-14 and BLR 7-14 of the Olympic Charter. It 

shall take steps to prohibit any use of any Olympic properties which would be contrary to such Rules or their 

Bye-laws. It shall also endeavor to obtain, for the benefit of the IOC, protection of the Olympic properties of 

the IOC.

s)	 To be recognized by the International Olympic Committee and affiliated to Olympic Council of Asia, 

Commonwealth Games Federation, South Asia Sport Federation and organization.

GENERAL OBJECTIVES OF THE NOC SRI LANKA 
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It gives me great pleasure to send this message to the Annual Report of the National Olympic Committee for the 
year 2017.

The year under review may not be named as most successful but we made quite a progress collectively which 
is encouraging.  We welcomed the inclusion of five new members to the Olympic fraternity namely - Sri Lanka 
Rugby Football Union, Sri Lanka Karate-do Federation, National Roller Skating Association, Sri Lanka Amateur 
Baseball/Softball Association and the Modern Pentathlon Federation of Sri Lanka thereby increasing the affiliation 
of membership to 31. 

We entered 8th Asian Winter Games in Sapporo, Japan with the young Seshaan Gardiner taking part in the games 
under difficult weather conditions. The 6th Commonwealth Youth Games in Nassau, Bahamas had a contingent of 
28 athletes and 9 officials. Sri Lanka became 23rd in the overall medal standing by securing 2 Silver medals which 
were won by the swimmer, Kyle Abeysinghe in Boys 100m Freestyle and 50m Freestyle.

Also noteworthy was the Queen’s Baton Relay and the preliminary work towards staging of the 21st Commonwealth 
Games which is scheduled to be held in the Gold Coast in Queensland, Australia. 

We also undertook Teachers Training Programme in Bindunuwewa, where two Sports Administrators Courses were 
conducted with the participation of 96 Physical Education Teachers at Uva National College of education.

The staging the Olympic Values Education Programme for the very first time, named ‘OVEP Debater’ needs to be 
mentioned. The theme was Olympic Education values via school children, the budding core society.

Not the least was the Olympic Day run. This event was special with the undertaking of 300 Kilo Meters out of the 
capital city of Colombo and gave the people and the students as far as Ampara a glimpse of the Olympic spirit.

While thanking the people who helped us along this tough journey, I take this opportunity to wish the Executive 
Committee all the best and my sincere gratitude for the work accomplished during this period.

Hemasiri Fernando
President (1997-2018)

MESSAGE OF MR. HEMASIRI FERNANDO
President NOCSL (1997-2018)



National Olympic Committee of Sri Lanka

5

www.olympic . lk

Sri Lanka Archery Association Sri Lanka Aquatic Sports Union

Athletic Association of Sri Lanka Sri Lanka Badminton

Sri Lanka Basketball Federation Boxing Association of Sri Lanka

National Association of Canoeing and Kayaking in
Sri Lanka Cycling Federation of Sri Lanka

Sri Lanka Equestrian Association National Association of Fencing Sri Lanka

 Football Federation of Sri Lanka Sri Lanka Golf Union

National Gymnastic Association of Sri Lanka Handball Federation of Sri Lanka

Sri Lanka Hockey Federation Sri Lanka Judo Association

AFFILIATED MEMBER FEDERATIONS
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Modern Pentathlon Federation of Sri Lanka Amateur Rowing Association of Sri Lanka

National Shooting Sport Federation Table Tennis Association of Sri Lanka

Sri Lanka Tennis Federation Sri Lanka Teakwondo Federation

Sri Lanka Triathlon Federation Sri Lanka Volleyball Federation

Sri Lanka Weightlifting Federation Wrestling Federation of Sri Lanka

Yachting Association of Sri Lanka Sri Lanka Rugby Football Union

Sri Lanka National Roller Skating Association Sri Lanka Amateur Baseball/Softball Association

  Sri Lanka Karate-Do Federation

AFFILIATED MEMBER FEDERATIONS
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To: Members of the National Olympic Committee of Sri Lanka 

Special General Meeting of the National Olympic Committee of Sri Lanka
at “Olympic House”

Due to the prevailing security situation in our country, we regret to inform you, the Special General 

Meeting is being fixed to Saturday the 1st June 2019 at 1030 hrs at the Olympic House followed 

by lunch.

We welcome you to send us any of your proposals/ suggestions etc till 10th May 2019 and the 

accounts/ books are available at the NOC Office and could be examined by prior appointment with 

the Treasurer until 15th May 2019.

Yours faithfully, 

Maxwell de Silva 
Secretary General 
NOC Sri Lanka 

26th April 2019
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1.	 Roll call 

2.	 Address by President of NOC Sri Lanka 

3.	 Confirmation of the Minutes of the Annual General Meeting held on 23rd February 2018

4.	 Election of Mr. Hemasiri Fernando, Honourary Life President under Article 13.2

5.	 Election of Mr. Prema Pinnawale, Honrourary Life Member under Article 13.2

6.	 Admission of New Members as per IOC Charter / NOC SL Constitution – 

a.	 National Association for Climbing and Mountaineering in Sri Lanka  

b.	 Surfing Federation of Sri Lanka 

	 The application of the above two National Federations were reviewed and approved at the 

Executive Board of the NOC Sri Lanka. 

7.	 Amendment to the Constitution 

8.	 Consideration of the Annual Report of the Secretary General for the year 2017 

9.	 Adoption of the Audited Statements of Accounts for the years 2017 

10.	 Determine and approve the guidelines for strategic plan 

11.	 Examine and approval of action plan for the year 2019  

12.	 Examine and approve the annual budget for the year 2019

13.	 Appointment of the External Auditor under Article 15.3 (g)

14.	 Annual Subscription 

15.	 Any Other Business

Special General Meeting of the National Olympic Committee of Sri Lanka
June 01, 2019 at “Olympic House”

AGENDA
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NATIONAL OLYMPIC COMMITTEE OF SRI LANKA
“Olympic House”, 100/9F, Independence Avenue, Colombo 7, Sri Lanka

Tel: +94 11 268 4420   Fax: +94 11 268 4429   E mail: natolcom@slt.lk   Web: www.srilankaolympic.org

Minutes of the Annual General Meeting of the National Olympic Committee held on 23rd February 2018 at 

5.00 pm at the “Olympic House”, Colombo 07.

Present :-
Mr. Hemasiri Fernando President of the NOC & representative of Sri Lanka Triathlon

Mr. T. Maxwell Priyantha Nimal de Silva Secretary General & representative of Sri Lanka Judo Association 

Mr. A.K. Joseph Benedict Kenny Vice President & representative of Yachting Association of Sri Lanka

Maj. Gen. (Rtd) W. Palitha Piyasiri Fernando Vice President & representative of Athletics Association of Sri Lanka 

Mr. C.W. Devaraja Henry    Vice President & representative of Amateur Rowing Association of Sri Lanka 

Mr. J. Dian Gomes      Vice President & representative of Boxing Association of Sri Lanka

Mr. J.A. Gamini Jayasinghe Treasurer & representative of Sri Lanka Hockey Federation

Mr. K.G. Nishanthe Indunil Piyasena Assistant Secretary & representative of Modern Pentathlon Federation of 
Sri Lanka

Mr. Susil Ranasinghe Assistant Secretary 

Mr. M.A. Chandana Upul Perera Assistant Treasurer 

Mr. A.T.H. Chanka Hasantha Sri Lanka Aquatic Sports Union

Mr. J.A. Senath Somachandra Sri Lanka Aquatic Sports Union

Cdr (Rtd) H.U. Silva Sri Lanka Archery Association

Brig. H. Rajeeva Wickramasinghe  Sri Lanka Archery Association

Mr. Prema Dharmasena Pinnewale   Athletics Association of Sri Lanka 

Mr. Nishantha Dayan de Silva Jayasinghe  Sri Lanka Badminton 

Mr. Clarence Lakshman Homer    Sri Lanka Badminton 

Mr. Fazil Mohamed Hussain   Sri Lanka Amateur Baseball/ Softball Association

Mr. Rajith Ratnayake  Sri Lanka Amateur Baseball/ Softball Association

Dr. K.M. Chulapadma Lalindra Banda Senaratne Sri Lanka Basketball Federation

Wing Commander (Rtd) Chandana B. Liyanage   Sri Lanka Basketball Federation

Mr. M. Aubrey Vernon Peiris Boxing Association of Sri Lanka

Mr. Rohan Prithiviraj Perera    National Association for Canoeing and Kayaking in Sri Lanka

Mr. Navaratnarajah Karunaratne  Cycling Federation of Sri Lanka

Mr. Senaka Clement Ranasinghe  Cycling Federation of Sri Lanka

Mr. B.D. Suranjith Abeysekara       Sri Lanka Equestrian Association

Mr. David Ralph Bolling Sri Lanka Equestrian Association
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Mr. Ajith Kumara Siyambalapitiya   National Association of Fencing Sri Lanka

Ms. AA. Sasini Naushara Senarath  National Association of Fencing Sri Lanka

Mr. K.A. Anura Calixtus de Silva Football Federation of Sri Lanka

Mr. Jaswar Umaru Lebbe         Football Federation of Sri Lanka

Mr. W. Priath Fernando  Sri Lanka Golf Union

Mr. Ranil Peiris Sri Lanka Golf Union

Mr. H.D. Kamal Sanjeewa Perera National Gymnastic Association of Sri Lanka

Mr. K. Sisira Kumara   National Gymnastic Association of Sri Lanka

Maj. Gen. W.B. Dampath Pandula Fernando Handball Federation of Sri Lanka

Mr. F. Gehan Dalpadadu Handball Federation of Sri Lanka

Senior DIG (Rtd) E.A. Sumith Edirisinghe Sri Lanka Hockey Federation

Mr. S.P. Senarath   Sri Lanka Judo Association 

Mr. H.M. Sisira Kumara Sri Lanka Karate-do Federation

Mr. B.M. Keerthi Kumara Basnayake     Sri Lanka Karate-do Federation

Mr. Dumindu Dhananjaya Premaratna Modern Pentathlon Federation of Sri Lanka

Mr. K.D. Neel Rathnasiri Perera Sri Lanka National Roller Skating Association

Mr. Sumith Chanaka Wijesinghe Sri Lanka National Roller Skating Association

Mr. A. Rohan Harsha Fernando Amateur Rowing Association of Sri Lanka 

Mr. Asanga Chandana Seneviratne Sri Lanka Rugby

Mr. Lasitha Wasundara de Zoysa Sri Lanka Rugby

Mr. Shirantha Austin Milroy Peries National Shooting Sport Federation of Sri Lanka

Mr. E.A. Pradeep Chinthaka Edirisinghe  National Shooting Sport Federation of Sri Lanka

Mr. W.A. Chathura Jayendra Table Tennis Association of Sri Lanka

Mr. Surendran (Suresh) Subramaniam  Sri Lanka Tennis Association

Mr. R.M. Kanchana Jayarathna Sri Lanka Taekwondo Federation

Mr. Chaminda Punchihewa Sri Lanka Taekwondo Federation

Mr. Samantha Priyanka Wickramasinghe  Sri Lanka Triathlon

Mr. A.S. Nalaka Sri Lanka Volleyball Federation

Mr. K.R.D. Chiththadhamma Rathnamudali   Sri Lanka Volleyball Federation

Mr. Nalaka Hewamadduma Sri Lanka Weightlifting Federation

Mr. Warnakulasuriya Ajith Thamel Sri Lanka Weightlifting Federation

Mr. R.V.A. Prageeth Priyanka Perera Wrestling Federation of Sri Lanka

Mr. M.A. Chaminda Kumara Mallawaarachchi  Wrestling Federation of Sri Lanka

Ms. Reshika Udugampola NOC SL Athletes’ Commission

Mr. R. Chamara Nuwan Dharmawardhana NOC SL Athletes’ Commission 

1.	 1.1  The President extended a warm welcome to all present and stated that, this was the first occasion where 

the Annual General Meeting and election of office bearers are taking place after 2009. He further welcomed 

Mr. Haider A Farman, the representative who was nominated by the IOC / OCA to observe our AGM and 

Election and invited Mr. Farman to address the House. 
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1.2	 Mr. Farman, as an observer on behalf of the IOC & OCA, stated that he is present to observe the 

Annual General Meeting and Election of the NOC Sri Lanka. As per his explanations, according to the 

Olympic Charter, each NOC should have an Athletes' Commission. According to the information which 

has been submitted to the IOC, the Athletes' Commission of NOC Sri Lanka has been conducted fairly 

and approved by the IOC with no confrontation. Therefore, he stated that the Athletes' Commission 

has the full right to vote at this Annual General Meeting.

	 With related to the Sri Lanka Winter Sports Association, Mr. Farman stated that this Winter Sports 

Association has to follow the NOC approved status in terms of recognition of National Federations 

(either they are associate or full member) to gain the voting rights. Further to the discussions, he 

announced the fact that each Winter Sport has its own International Federation where the recognition 

for the related association is given accordingly. However, Mr. Farman stated that Sri Lanka Winter 

Sports Association apparently has not fulfilled the above requirements.  

	 In reply to the statement, Athletes' Commission has not conducted in a proper way and it has to ratify 

by the General Assembly as per the NOC SL Constitution, brought by Mr. Rohan Fernando, Mr. Farman 

stated that the Athletes’ Commission has the full right and legality as per the Olympic Charter as it has 

been approved by the IOC Legal Department and Mr. Farman further added that his presence is to 

reflect the IOC position. 

1.3 	 At this juncture, Ms. Reshika Udugampola, the Secretary of the NOC SL Athletes’ Commission informed 

the House that Athletes’ Commission was formed in a fair manner. And she further stated that as an 

athlete and as well as the Secretary of the Athletes’ Commission, the Commission will be refrained from 

the Election but in future meetings that the House should understand that the Athletes’ Commission 

has full right to vote which no one could be stopped as per the IOC Charter and NOCSL Constitution. 

2.	 Notice Convening the meeting and Roll Call 

	 Mr. Maxwell de Silva, Secretary General conveyed the notice of the Annual General Meeting which had been 

circulated amongst membership and announced the House of the names of the representatives who were 

present for the Annual General Meeting. 

3.	 Obituaries 

	 The President informed the House to pay one minute silence to pay respect to the three members and officials 

who had demised in 2017 and 2018. 

1.	 Mr. Roy de Silva (1937 to 2017)

	 Mr. de Silva became the President of the National Olympic Committee (NOC) and the Commonwealth 

Games Association (CGA) of Sri Lanka from 1983 to 1986, 1987 to 1990, 1991 to 1994 and 1995 to 1997. 

2.	 Mr. Michael Karunatilake (1927 to 2017)

	 Mr. Karunatilake, former Administrative Secretary of the National Olympic Committee of Sri Lanka 

(NOC) was associated with the Olympic Movement in Sri Lanka from 1983 to 2015, when he retired due 

to ill-health.
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3.	 DIG (Rtd) I.T. Canagaratnam (1937 to 2018)

	 DIG I.T. Canagaratnam (Retired) was the President of Sri Lanka Basketball Federation from 1994 to 

1998 & from 2001 to 2004 and as well as a member of the National Olympic Committee of Sri Lanka 

from 1994 to 2013. 

4.	 Confirmation of the Minutes of the Annual General Meeting held on 02.06.2011

	 The Minutes of the Annual General Meeting held on 02.06.2011 which had been circulated to the membership 

and were confirmed as proposed by Mr. Chandana Perera and seconded by Mr. Susil Ranasinghe. 

5.	 Confirmation of the Minutes of the General Meeting held on 09.11.2017

	 The Minutes of the General Meeting held on 09th November 2017 had been circulated to the membership 

and the Minutes were confirmed as proposed by Mr. Chandana Liyanage and Mr. Chandana Perera.

6.	 Confirmation of the Minutes of the Special General Assembly held on 04.01.2018

	 The Minutes of the Special General Assembly held on 04.01.2018 which had been circulated to the membership 

and were confirmed as proposed by Mr. Joseph Kenny and seconded by Dr. Chulapadma Senaratne. 

7.	 Annual Reports for the years 2011, 2012, 2013, 2014, 2015 and 2016 by the Secretary General 

7.1	 The Annual Reports for the years 2011, 2012, 2013, 2014, 2015 and 2016 were prepared and tabled by 

the Secretary General, which had been circulated among the members. 

7.2	 Mr. Gihan Dalpathado of Handball Federation made an observation for the Report of 2016 for non-

inclusion of his name under the foreign games representation at the South Asian Games and Asian 

Winter Games and the observations were noted. 

7.3	 Accordingly, the Annual Reports for the years 2011, 2012, 2013, 2014, 2015 and 2016 were adopted as 

proposed by Mr. Sumith Edirisinghe and seconded by Mr. Chanaka Hashantha. 

8.	 Statements of Account for the years 2010, 2011, 2012, 2013, 2014, 2015 and 2016

8.1	 When the statements of Account for the years 2010, 2011, 2012, 2013, 2014, 2015 and 2016 were 

taken up for discussion, Mr. Gamini Jayasinghe informed the House that there has been a tremendous 

decrease in the Audit Queries and a presentation on the Audit Queries comparison during this period 

was screened. Further, Mr. Gamini Jayasinghe thanked and appreciated Mr. Rohan Fernando for his 

contribution as the Chairman of the Finance Committee during the said period. 

	 Since there were no any observations on the Statements of Accounts for the years 2010, 2011, 

2012, 2013, 2014, 2015 and 2016 by the House, Mr. Joseph Kenny remarked that Auditor’s Reports 

are proposed and  accepted subjected to the answers of the queries are passed at the next General 

Assembly. Mr. Suranjith Premadasa seconded the Accounts. 

9.	 Election of Office-bearers

	 The President announced that the Election will be conducted by the independent Election Commission and 

he invited the Election Commission which consisted of three members (Dr. R.M.K. Rathnayake, Chariman, 

Mr. S. Wirithamulla, Member and Mr. S. Liyanagama, Member) to conduct the election. The Commission had 

reviewed all the nominations received and objections/appeals received from members and announced the 
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final list on 17th February 2018. Further, the Chairman of the Election Commission announced that each 

voting member, whom was nominated by each affiliated National Federation / Association and accepted by 

the Commission, is entitled to only one vote irrespective of the number of members present at the meeting. 

Therefore, the nominated each voting member from all Associations/ Federations will be issued ballot papers 

to cast their votes for the above posts. The Elections were conducted post by post by a secret ballot as agreed 

at the Special General Assembly held on 04.01.2018 and the result sheets were certified by the Election 

Commission and the IOC / OCA representative, Mr. Haider A. Farman. 

9.1	 Post of President - Two contestants were there for the post of President and results are as follows; 

1) Mr. Anthony Rohan Harsha Fernando 12 votes

2) Mr. Surendran Subramaniam 18 votes

30

	 One vote was cancelled. 

	 The Chairman of the Election Commission announced Mr. Surendran Subramaniam as the elected President. 

9.2	 Post of Secretary General - Two nominations were received for the post of Seretary General and Mr. Raigama 

Vidana Arachchige Prageeth Priyanka Perera of Wrestling Federation of Sri Lanka informed the Election 

Commission and the House that he wishes to withdraw his nomination and therefore requested the House 

not to vote for him. The results are as follows; 

1) Mr. Totabaddage Maxwell Priyantha Nimal de Silva 19 votes

2) Mr. Raigama Vidana Arachchige Prageeth Priyanka Perera withdrawn

3) Mr. Rohan Prithiviraj Perera 12 votes 

31

	 The Chairman of the Election Commission announced Mr. Totabaddage Maxwell Priyantha Nimal de Silva as 

the Secretary General. 

9.3	 Four Posts of Vice President - The Chairman of the Election Commission announced that each voting 

member is entitled to cast for maximum of four nominees. Accordingly results are as follows.

1) Mr. Joseph Benedict Kenny Adutharai Kattar 18 votes

2) Mr. Kirideliyana Arachchilage Anura Calixtus de Silva 12 votes

3) Senior DIG (Rtd) Edirisinghe Arachchige Sumith Edirisinghe 16 votes

4) Maj General Warnakulasuriya Brandon Dampath Pandula Fernando 13 votes

5) Maj Gen (Rtd) Waduge Palitha Piyasiri Fernando 18 votes

6) Mr. Jammagalage Dian Gomes 15 votes

7) Mr. Mallawa Arachchige Chaminda Kumara Mallawaarachchi 2 votes

8) Mr. Asanga Chandana Seneviratne 17 votes

9) Cdr. Hithanadura Udayasena Silva 11 votes
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 	 Accordingly, the Chairman of the Election Commission announced the below officials as elected Vice 

Presidents. 

1) Mr. Joseph Benedict Kenny Adutharai Kattar 18 votes 

2) Maj Gen (Rtd) Waduge Palitha Piyasiri Fernando 18 votes

3) Mr. Asanga Chandana Seneviratne 17 votes

4) Senior DIG (Rtd) Edirisinghe Arachchige Sumith Edirisinghe 16 votes

9.4	 Post of Treasurer  - The Chairman of the Election Commission called for votes for the post of Treasurer where 

three nominations had received. At this occasion, Mr. Jayasinghe Arachchige Gamini Jayasinghe informed the 

House that he is withdrawing his nomination form hence not to vote for him. 

1) Mr. Jayasinghe Arachchige Gamini Jayasinghe Withdrawn 

2) Mr. Shirantha Austin Milroy Peries 14 votes

3) Mr. Senaka Clement Ranasinghe 17 votes

	 Accordingly, the Chairman of the Election Commission announced Mr. Senaka Clement Ranasinghe as the 

elected Treasurer. 

9.5	 Post of Assistant Secretary - The two nominations had been received for the post of Assistant Secretary 

namely; 

	 Mr. Rathnayake Mudiyanselage Kanchana Jayarathna

	 Wing Commander Chandana Bamunusinghe Liyanage

	 And Mr. Rathnayakke Mudiyanselage Kanchana Jayarathna informed the Election Commission and the House 

he is withdrawing his nomination. Therefore, the Chairman of the Election Commission announced that Wing 

Commander (Rtd) Chandana Bamunusinghe Liyanage has been elected uncontested to the post of Assistant 

Secretary.

9.6	 Post of Assistant Treasurer - The nominees and the results for the post of Assistant Treasurer are as follows; 

1) Mr. Nishantha Dayan de Silva Jayasinghe 17 votes 

2) Mr. Katuwawala Gamage Nishanthe Indunil Piyasena 14 votes

	 Accordingly, Chairman of the Election Commission announced Mr. Nishantha Dayan de Silva Jayasinghe as 

the elected Assistant Treasurer. 

9.7	 Post of Committee Members (Three Posts)  6 nominations were received for the three posts of Committee 

Members and one was withdrawn. The nominees and results are as follows;

1) Mr. Appuhennadhi Thota Hewage Chanaka Hashantha 21 votes

2) Mr. Arachchillage Shanthasiri Nalaka 15 votes

3) Mr. Fazil Mohamed Hussain 17 votes

4) Mr. Ajith Kumara Siyambalapitiya 12 votes
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5) Mr. Warnakulasuriya Ajith Thamel 17 votes

6) Maj. Gen. Indunil Priyanka Ranasinghe withdrawn

	 Accordingly, the Chairman of the Election Committee announced the following as elected three Committee 

Members. 

1) Mr. Appuhennadhi Thota Hewage Chanaka Hashantha 21 votes

2) Mr. Fazil Mohamed Hussain 17 votes

3) Mr. Warnakulasuriya Ajith Thamel 17 votes

	 Thereafter, the Chairman announced that the Election of the NOCSL Office Bearers has come to the end.

	 At this juncture, Mr. Rohan Fernando appreciated and thanked the Election Committee for conducting a free 

and fair election and also thanked Mr. Haider A. Farman of OCA for his presence and contribution at the 

elective AGM of the NOC Sri Lanka. 

10.	 Approve / ratification of the Athletes’ Commission representative elected by the NOCSL Athletes’ Commission 

(one member) under Article 16.1 (h) to the Executive Committee 

	 Continuing the Annual General Meeting by the newly elected President and Secretary General, informed 

the House that the Secretary of the Athletes’ Commission, Ms. Reshika Udugampola has informed that the 

Committee has nominated Mr. Niluka Karunarathna for the Executive Committee. 

	 The House unanimously agreed to accept Mr. Karunarathna for the Executive Committee. 

11.	 Appointment of Immediate Past President 

	 Mr. Hemasiri Fernando was nominated for the post of Immediate Past President and the House unanimously 

agreed. 

12.	 Appointment of Honorary Life President and Honorary Life Members under Article 13.1 and 13.2 

	 The Secretary informed the House that the Honorary Life President and Honorary Life Members has to be 

nominated and ratified through the Executive Committee. Since there is no any new nominations, the item 

was not discussed at the Annual General Meeting. 

13.	 Appointment of the External Auditor under Article 15.3 (g) 

	 The House agreed for the Auditor General as the External Auditor.  

	 With this announcement the President declared the meeting closed. 

       

	 Maxwell de Silva 
	 Secretary General
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1.	 INTRODUCTION 

1.1	 It is with great pleasure and pride I take this opportunity to present the Annual Report of the National Olympic 

Committee for the year 2017. During the given period, in spite the ups and downs within; the NOC SL as an 

organisation gathered strength and momentum to shape itself towards future stability. 

2.	 STRUCTURE & ORGANISATION 

2.1	 Expansion 

	 Membership was granted to the following five Associations. 

	 1) Sri Lanka Rugby Football Union 

	 2) Sri Lanka Karate-do Federation 

	 3) National Roller Skating Association 

	 4) Sri Lanka Amateur Baseball Association 

	 5) Modern Pentathlon Federation of Sri Lanka 

	 Thereby the affiliation of membership was increased to 31. 

2.2	 Meetings 

	 Since the office was running by Office Bearers, one office bearers meeting was held on 6th November 2017 

prior to the General Assembly which was held on 9th November 2017. 

	 Also, there were six Management Committee meetings conducted during the year 2017.

2.3	 Changes of the Office Bearers 

	 The total number of Office Bearers were remained 11 due to the lifetime suspension imposed on Mr. Manilal 

Fernando by the FIFA. 

2.4	 Sub-Committees 

	 The following Committees were formalized and functioned during the year 2017. 

Education Committee Mr. Preethi Perera, Chairman

Mr. Nishanthe Piyasena, Member (Assistant Secretary of NOC Sri Lanka)

Mr. Gamini Jayasinghe, Member (Treasurer of NOC Sri Lanka)

Finance Committee Mr. Rohan Fernando, Chairman

Procurement Committee Mr. Joseph Kenny, Chairman (Vice President of NOC Sri Lanka)

Mr. Deva Henry, Member (Vice President of NOC Sri Lanka)

Mr. Chandana Perera, Member (Assistant Treasurer of NOC Sri Lanka)

Nominations Committee Mr. Deva Henry, Chairman (Vice President of NOC Sri Lanka)

Mr. Preethi Perera, Member

Mr. Rohan Fernando, Member
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2.5	 ‘Olympic House’ 

	 The Gymnasium of the Olympic House was outsourced to Ultimates Sports (pvt) Ltd on 01.07.2016. The 

agreement with the ‘Fortune Boat’ restaurant was renewed on 1st November 2016 up to 31st October 2021.

3.	 TASKS 

3.1	 Pirith Ceremony 

	 With starting of the year 2017, the NOC Sri Lanka hold a ‘Pirith Ceremony’ for the first time since moving into 

current premises in 2008, on 2nd January 2017 followed by an almsgiving in the morning of 3rd January 2017. 

	 The Pirith chanting went through entire night to bless athletes, national federations & members.

Ultimates Sports (pvt) Ltd Fortune Boat’ Restaurant



21

RE
PO

RT
 O

F 
TH

E 
SE

CR
ET

AR
Y 

G
EN

ER
AL

-2
01

7

National Olympic Committee of Sri Lanka

www.olympic . lk

3.2 	 The Dream Programme
	 The Dream Programme in connection with the Peyong Chang Winter Games was held from 09th to 21st 

January 2017. The under mentioned three athletes and one official took part at this event, representing Sri 

Lanka.

	 Mr. K.D. Neel R. Perera – Official 

	 B.M. Chatura Imesh Kumara – Athlete 

	 Seshaan Nikhil Cyril Gardiner – Athlete 

	 W.B. Methmal Shamika Misara – Athlete 

3.3	 8th Asian Winter Games - Sapporo, Japan - 19-26 February 2017

	 With the blessings and guidance of Mr. Hemasiri Fernando, who was the President of the National Olympic 

Committee, Sri Lanka during the year 2017, the NOC Sri Lanka was fortunate to take its first step to participate 

in the 8th Asian Winter Games, where four male 

and one female athletes represented the country 

in three disciplines namely, Alpine Skiing, Cross 

Country Skiing and Snowboarding.

	 Seshaan Gardiner who was a minor participant 

took part in the games. He took part as a 

forerunner in Slalom event (Alpine Skiing). 

Considering gruelling conditions underfoot and 

the change in weather a special recognition was 

offered for Seshaan and his coach, Jan Pintar.



22

RE
PO

RT
 O

F 
TH

E 
SE

CR
ET

AR
Y 

G
EN

ER
AL

-2
01

7
National Olympic Committee of Sri Lanka

www.olympic . lk

	 The two boys, namely Sajeev de Silva and Shehan Muthugala, who entered the 15 km ‘Free’ event (Cross 

Country Skiing), were impressive as they successfully completed the race through once again harsh weather 

condition, and their courage and determination to finish the competition should be highly admired. 

	 Lukas Hettiaratchi, who had been entered in 1.4 km Individual Sprint Classical and 10 km Classical event 

(Cross Country Skiing), also performed well. The only female athlete, Azquiya Usuph in Giant Slalom event 

(Snowboard), unfortunately could not complete her event, as she was lacked experience.

	 In order to uplift the training facilities of the above athletes; a rigorous training session was conducted in 
Slovenia under professional and well-experienced trainers in Slovenia prior to the above games under the 

auspices of IOC – Olympic Solidarity. However, all the cost related to the trainings of Seshaan Gardiner was 

borne by his parents. 

	 The directions and advice of these trainers had motivated and paved the way for the athletes to reap the 

essence out of the Asian Winter Games. Since the athletes were not exposed to opportunities of practicing 

Winter Sports in Sri Lanka, which is a tropical country, this training was a huge encouraging factor on the 

athletes.

3.4	 6th Commonwealth Youth Games Nassau, Bahamas

	 A contingent of 28 athletes and 9 officials participated in the 6th Commonwealth Youth Games, which was 

held from 18th to 23rd July 2017 in Nassau, Bahamas. 

	 Sri Lankan team participated in six disciplines;  

DISCIPLINE MALE FEMALE OFFICIAL

Athletics 3 3 1

Boxing 1 1 1

Judo 1 1 1

Rugby 12 - 3

Swimming 2 2 1

Tennis 1 1 2

	 Wing Commander Erandika Gunawardane led the team as Chef de Mission

	 The Swimming athlete, Kyle Abeysinghe was sent for training in the USA with his coach, Mr. Manoj Abeysinghe. 

As a result, we are glad to record that Sri Lanka became 23rd in the overall medal standing by securing 2 Silver 

medals which was won by the swimmer, Kyle Abeysinghe in Boys 100m Freestyle and 50m Freestyle.
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3.5	 5th Asian Indoor & Martial Art Games – Ashgabat, Turkmenistan – 2017 

	 The 5th Asian Indoor & Martial Art Games was held in Ashgabat, Turkmenistan from 17th to 27th September 

2017.

	 The Sri Lanka team which was led by Captain Chandana Bopagoda, was consisted of 27 number of athletes 

and officials as follows; 

S/NO SPORT / FUNCTION NO. OF MALE ATHLETES NO. OF FEMALE ATHLETES NO. OF OFFICIALS

1 Indoor Athletics 4 2 1

2 Chess 2 2 1

3 Taekwondo 2 - 1

4 Wrestling 3 3 1

5 Weightlifting 3 - 1

6 Chef de Mission 1

14 7 6

	 Sri Lanka became 25 amongst 65 countries/ teams in the medal tally by winning 1 Gold, 2 Silver and 1 Bronze 

in Indoor Athletics.
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3.6	 21st Commonwealth Games, Gold Coast 2018 

a)	 21st Commonwealth Games, Gold Coast - 2018 - Oceania ‘GAPS’ Programme 

	 With connection to the 21st Commonwealth Games scheduled to be held in Gold Coast, Australia in 2018, the 

Commonwealth Games Federation in collaboration with the host Organizing Committee and other authorities 

conducted various programmes to enhance the athletes and officials performances. 

	 Accordingly, Oceania ‘GAPS’ Programme, an intensive high performance sports camp to facilitate the athletes 

and coaches targeting the said games are scheduled to be held in three module camps and the first module 

of the GAPS programme was held from 5th to 9th December 2016 in Gold Coast. 

	 With this regard, the under mentioned athletes and officials in Athletics and Beach Volleyball were nominated 

to take part in the GAPS programme.  

	 However, only the Athletics athlete and official were able to participate in the programme. 

Silver Medals
W.P. Amila Jayasiri in Men’s Long Jump

Bronze Medals
W.P. Manjula Kumara in Men’s High Jump

Silver Medals
H.K.M.I.G. Indunil Madushan Herath in Men’s 800 m

Gold Medal
A.A. Gayanthika Thushari in Women’s 800 m
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GIVEN NAMES FAMILY NAME GENDER SPORT POSITION

Mr. Roshan Dammika Ranathunga Ranathungage Male Athletics Athlete

Mr. Thiron Indika Gamage Eramudu Godagamaga Male Athletics Coach

Mr. Sadun Madusanka Fernando Andibuduge Male Beach Volleyball Athlete

Mr. Indika Tiron Jayathilaka Kankani Achchi 
Kankanamalage

Male Beach Volleyball Athlete

Mr. K Rathnamudali Daunda Gedara 
Chiththadhamma

Rathnamudali Male Beach Volleyball Coach

	 The second camp of the ‘GAPS’ programme was held from 15th to 19th May 2017 in Gold Coast, Australia. Two 

from athletics and two from Swimming took part in the Camp.

GIVEN NAMES FAMILY NAME GENDER SPORT POSITION

Mr. Roshan Dammika Ranathunga Ranathungage Male Athletics Athlete

Mr Thiron Indika Gamage Eramudu Godagamaga Male Athletics Coach

Mr. Gallage Amrith Anudima Perera Male Swimming Athlete

Mr. Arukshan Pavalachandran Male Swimming Athlete

b)	 Games Preparation Grant 

	 The Athletics, Swimming, Weightlifting and Wrestling Sports Federations were benefited under the CGF Games 

preparation Grant targeting the Games.

c)	 Queen’s Baton Relay 

	 The commemorative Baton of the XXI Commonwealth Games – Gold Coast 2018, which carries the message 

of the Her Majesty Queen Elizabeth II, the Patron of the Commonwealth Games Federation (CGF), travelled all 

over the Commonwealth regions with the blessings of the people.

	 The Queen’s Baton whilst travelling through Asia arrived from Bangladesh to Sri Lanka on 12th October 2017 

at 15:55hrs by Sri Lankan flight No. UL 190 as its 53rd stop of Commonwealth nation. The Commonwealth 

Games Association of Sri Lanka with the collaboration of the Ministry of Sports arranged a set of colourful 

ceremonies to mark this historical event.

	 The Queen’s Baton was warmly welcomed and magnificent ceremonies were held in Galle and Colombo. The 

Baton was carried to Galle by a special train. Australian High Commissioner HE Bryce Hutchesson handed 

over the Baton to President of Commonwealth Games Association of Sri Lanka and the Asian Regional Vice 

President of CGF, Mr. Hemasiri Fernando. Then it was handed over by Mr. Fernando to the Hon. Dayasiri 

Jayasekera, Minister of Sports. Another welcome ceremony was held with the blessings of the President of Sri 

Lanka and the Gold Coast Queen’s Baton left the country for Malaysia at 07:45hrs on 16th October 2017 by Sri 

Lankan flight No. UL 314 by adding another historical event to the Sri Lankan Commonwealth movement.
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d)	 21st Commonwealth Games, Gold Coast 2018 – Chef de Mission Meeting
	 The Chef de Mission meeting of the 21st Commonwealth Games was held in Gold Coast, Australia from 15th to 

18th October 2017. The meeting was attended by Mr. Gamini Jayasinghe, Chef de Mission and Ms. Kaushalya 

Danthanarayana of NOC / CGA Sri Lanka staff and the meeting was a productive one in preparation for the 

Games. 

EDUCATION PROGRAMMES

3.7	 Teachers Training Programme - Bindunuwewa
	 NOC Sri Lanka successfully completed its 2nd & 3rd editions of the Sport Administrators course for Physical 

Education trainee teachers respectively in 27th & 28th January 2017 and 1st & 2nd April 2017 with the 

participation of 50 & 46 trainee teachers respectively. 

 	 The 2nd edition was conducted by Mr. B.L.H. Perera and Mr. Nishanthe Piyasena whilst the 3rd edition was 

conducted by Mr. B.L.H. Perera. 
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3.8	 Sport Administrators Courses

	 NOC Sri Lanka successfully conducted two Sport Administrators’ Courses in 2017, under the austieces of IOC-

Olympic Solidarity, with the participation of 38 Sport Administrators in the 1st  course which from 23rd to 

26th March 2017 and  44 Sport Administrators in second course which was held from 27th to 30th July 2017. 

Course was attended by Sport Administrators from National Associations/Federations, three Armed Forces 

and Police, Universities, International Schools and other sports organizations. 



29

RE
PO

RT
 O

F 
TH

E 
SE

CR
ET

AR
Y 

G
EN

ER
AL

-2
01

7

National Olympic Committee of Sri Lanka

www.olympic . lk

3.9	 5th Session (final session) of the ASMC 2016/2017

	 The final session of the Advanced Sport Management Course (ASMC) 2016/2017 was held on 11th & 12th 

March 2017 and completed the 5th edition of ASMC with 17 successful candidates. 
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3.10 	 Olympic Values Education Programme (OVEP) - Inter School Pilot Debate Programme

	 For the first time in the historical journey of Olympism, the National Olympic Committee of Sri Lanka (NOC Sri 
Lanka) implemented the project of Inter School Pilot Debate Programme which is called ‘OVEP Debater’. The 
theme was Olympic Education Values via school children, who are the core of society.

	 As this programme, in consultation with the International Olympic Committee, was originally introduced by 
the NOC Sri Lanka, it had been suggested to continue this endeavour until the last school in the country. 
Initially, 10 leading schools from districts of Colombo and Kandy, under the recommendation of the Ministry 
of Education was selected for the Pilot Inter-School Debate which is currently on the stage.

	 NOC Sri Lanka expects that this project will promote the Olympic Values and enhance its importance to 
society. The proposed project includes the conducting of a televised debate on five Olympic Educational 
Values -- Joy of Effort, Fair play, Respect for Others, Pursuit of Excellence, and Balance Between Body, Will and 
Mind. This debate competition will encourage students to research, learn, develop opinions and arguments 
and advocate spreading of Olympic values.

3.11	 International Olympic Academy 

a)	 14th International Session for NOA Presidents or NOA Directors 
	 Mr. B.L.H. Perera, Academic Director of NOC Sri Lanka, attended the programme held from 6th to 13th May 

2017 in Olympia, Greece. 

b)	  IOA – 56th International Session for Young Participants 

	 The programme was held from 17th June to 01st July 2017 in Olympia, Greece. Ms.  G.D.C.R. Dayarathna, staff 

member of the NOC Sri Lanka attended the above programme.
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3.12	 Olympic Day Run

	 In spreading the idea of promoting Olympism and Olympic Values among people all over Sri Lanka, NOC Sri 

Lanka is making arrangements for bringing the Olympic Day Celebrations all parts of Sri Lanka from North to 

South and from East to West. As such, NOC Sri Lanka organized to celebrate this year’s International Olympic 

Day on 23rd June 2017 in Ampara, a City in the Eastern part of Sri Lanka, which is over 300 km away from 

Colombo. 

	 Celebrations, which comprised of an Art Exhibition on Olympic Values with the participation of over 100 

school children, a seminar on Olympic Values Education Programme (OVEP) for around 60 teachers in Ampara 

district and a 2.5 km run represented by over 1500 school participants, were conducted with  great success.
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3.13	 Scholarships for Athletes 

a)	 Team Support Grant 

	 The IOC – Olympic Solidarity, under the Team Support Grant, approved a scholarship of USD 18,300/- to Sri 

Lanka Basketball Association to cover training and preparation expenses (in Sri Lanka), and participation 

expenses and coaches expenses for FIBA Asian Under – 18 Championship for Women team from 1st August 

to 22nd November 2016. 

b)	 2017-2020: Summer Youth Olympic Games Buenos Aires 2018 - Athlete Support - “Option 1 – Identification” 

& “Option 2 – YOG Qualification”

	 Upon the request of NOC Sri Lanka and its respective National Federations, the Olympic Solidarity has 

awarded an Olympic Scholarship for YOG 2018 for the below four athletes after a careful consideration and 

in consultation with the respective International Federations.

NOS. ATHLETE’S NAME SPORT APPROVED BUDGET (USD)

1 Taniya Minel Balasuriya Golf 7,435.78

2 Ishira Upeshala Fernando Golf 7,442.12

3 A. Shalika Santhush Weerasinghe Athletics 10,376.00

4 Kavindi Marian Dhashma Ranatunga Canoeing & Kayaking 10,376.00

c)	 Team Support Grant 

	 The IOC – Olympic Solidarity, under the Team Support Grant, offered a scholarship to Sri Lanka Rugby to 

cover training & preparation expenses (in Sri Lanka), and participation expenses and coaches expenses for 

the period - 2017 to 2020 approving a total budget of USD 60,000/-. 

	 Activities 2017 | Budget approved USD 8,586.00   | Budget requested USD 8,586.00

d)	 IOC – Olympic Solidarity – Olympic Scholarships for Athletes “Tokyo 2020” 

	 The following athletes are benefiting through the IOC – Olympic Solidarity Olympic Scholarships for Athletes 

“Tokyo 2020”. 

NOS. ATHLETE’S NAME DISCIPLINE START DATE MONTHLY GRANT USD

1 H.D. Vidusha Lakshani Athletics 01.09.2017 670

2 D.K.T. Wiraj Kumara Palangasinghe Weightlifting 01.09.2017 670

3 R. Chamara Nuwan Dharmawardhana Judo 01.09.2017 1000

4 Mathew Duncan Abeysinghe Swimming 01.09.2017 1000

5 A. A. Gayanthika Thushari Athletics 01.09.2017 670
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e)	 Also, NOC Sri Lanka financially assisting the below athletes to participate in competitions in 

preparation for Commonwealth and Asian Games in 2018. 

NAMES OF THE ATHLETES GENDER EVENT SPORT PROPOSED
DURATION

PER MONTH
PER GRANT

1 I.D.N. Kumara M 56 kg Weightlifting
1 Feb 2017 to
 30 June 2018 30,000.00

2 J.A.C. Lakmal M 56 kg Weightlifting
1 Feb 2017 to 
30 June 2018 30,000.00

3 D.K.T.W.K. Palagasinghe M 62 kg Weightlifting
1 Feb 2017 to 

30 August 2017 30,000.00

4 K.A. Sudesh Peiris M 62 kg Weightlifting 1 Feb 2017 to  30 June 2018 30,000.00

5 D.M.I.C. Dissanayake M 69 kg Weightlifting
1 Feb 2017 to
 30 June 2018 30,000.00

6 C.M. Warnakulasuriya F 53 kg Weightlifting
1 Feb 2017 to 
30 June 2018 20,000.00

7 V.C.G. Vidanage M 77 kg Weightlifting 1 Feb 2017 to  30 June 2018 20,000.00

8 W. Suresh Fernando M 65 kg Wrestling 1 Feb 2017 to  30 June 2018 20,000.00

9 H.S. Buddhika M 65 kg Wrestling 1 Feb 2017 to  30 June 2018 20,000.00

10 C.D Fernando M 53 kg Wrestling 1 Feb 2017 to  30 June 2018 20,000.00

11 W.M.D.D.K. Weerabahu F 58 kg Wrestling 1 Feb 2017 to  30 June 2018 20,000.00

12 Waruna Lakshan Dayaratne M Javelin 
Throw Athletics 1 Feb 2017 to  30 June 2018 20,000.00

13 Manjula Kumara Wijesekara M High
Jump Athletics 1 Feb 2017 to  30 June 2018 20,000.00

14 W.K. Himasha Eshan M 100 m Athletics 1 Feb 2017 to  30 June 2018 20,000.00

15 Gayantika Thushari Abeyratne F 800 m Athletics 1 Feb 2017 to  30 August 
2017 20,000.00

16 W.K.L.A. Nimali F 800 m Athletics 1 Feb 2017 to  30 June 2018 20,000.00

17 Warnage Ruwan Srinath M 55kg Karate 1 May 2017 to 30 April 2018 20,000.00

18 D.G.B. Dinusha Kumari F 50kg Karate 1 May 2017 to 30 April 2018 20,000.00

	 Shooting (2 athletes) and Judo (2 athletes) also have been proposed but the names were not submitted by the 

respective Associations.  
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3.14	 IOC World Conference on Injury and Illness in Sport, Monaco 

	 Under the IOC – Olympic Solidarity – Sports Medicine programme, a limited number of scholarships will 

be granted to National Olympic Committees covering the participation of one delegate in the IOC World 

Conference on Prevention of Injury and Illness in Sport in Monaco 16-18 March 2017.

	 Dr. A.M. Daminda Kumari Attanayake of Sri Lanka Sports Medicine Unit attended the above conference. 

3.15	 Development of National Sport System (DNSS)

	 The International Olympic Committee - Olympic Solidarity (IOC – OS) offered a sum of USD 25,600/- under 

the DNSS for upliftment of Table Tennis in Sri Lanka from 10th June to 30th November 2017. The project was 

visited by Mr. Arif Khan (PAK) from 10th June to 9th July 2017 and Mr. Richard McAfee (USA) from 1st to 30th 

November 2017. 

3.16	 Technical Course for Coaches (TCC) in Tennis

	 The International Olympic Committee - Olympic Solidarity (IOC – OS) offered another Technical Course for 

Coaches in Tennis approving a budget of USD 10,989/-. Accordingly, Sri Lanka Tennis Association conducted a 

Level 2 – Regional Course in November/ December 2017. 

3.17	 NOC Internal Development 

	 NOC Sri Lanka signed an agreement with UTS to develop and maintain our official website www.srilankaolympic.

org on 24.07.2015. Under this agreement the UTS developed the website which also included an athlete data 

base system. 

4.	 INFORMATION 

	 Participation of International Meetings, Conferences & Forums

4.1	 OCA Education Committee Meeting - Riyadh, Saudi Arabia

	 Mr. Maxwell de Silva, Secretary General of NOC SL attended the OCA Education Committee Meeting held in 

Riyadh, Saudi Arabia on 23rd January 2017 in his capacity as the Member of OCA Education Committee.

4.2	 OS/OCA Regional Forum 2017 - Muscat, Oman

	 The OS/OCA Regional Forum for the NOCs in West and South Asian zones was held in Muscat, Oman on 01st & 

02nd April 2017. Ms. Kaushalya Danthanarayana, Solidarity Relation Officer and Ms. Hansika Wijayagunasekera, 

Games Operations Officer represented NOC Sri Lanka at this forum.

4.3	 Olympic Marketing Seminar - Dubai

	 NOC SL was invited by the IOC to participate at the Olympic Marketing Seminar held in Dubai from 03rd to 

05th May 2017 and Mr. Joseph Kenny; Vice President of NOC SL attended this seminar.

4.4	 ACOLOP General Assembly - Macau

	 Mr. Kapila Jeewantha, Member of NOC SL attended the General Assembly of the Association of Portuguese 

Speaking Olympic Committees (ACOLOP) held in Macau on 20th May 2017.

4.5	 Follow-up Executive Committee Meeting of SAOC - Thimphu, Bhutan

	 A Follow-up Executive Committee Meeting of the South Asia Olympic Council (SAOC) was held in Thimphu, 

Bhutan on 06th & 07th June 2017. Mr. Maxwell de Silva, Secretary General of NOC SL and Mr. Gamini 

Jayasinghe, Hony. Treasurer of NOC SL attended of this meeting.
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4.6	 The following officials attended the 5th Asian Indoor Games & Martial Art Games in Ashgabat, 
Turkmenistan.

	 Mr. Deva Henry - Cultural Committee – OCA
	 Mr. R.A. Kapila Jeewantha - Sport & Environment Committee – OCA

4.7	 CGF Asian Regional Meeting – Colombo
	 CGA/NOC Sri Lanka had been offered by the Commonwealth Games Federation (CGF), the privilege of 

conducting its Asian Regional Meeting in Colombo on 11th June 2017, which included seven member countries 
of the Asian Region with the participation of the President of CGF, Ms. Louise Martin.

	 The meeting was held at the Galle Face Hotel, Colombo with the participation of Asian Commonwealth 
delegates, Mr. Syed Shahed Reza, Secretary General-CGA Bangladesh, Mr. Rajeev Mehta, Secretary General-
CGA India, Ms. Beng Choo Low, Secretary General-CGA Malaysia, Mrs. Veena Salman Masud, Associate 
Secretary General-CGA Pakistan, Mr. Seng Heng Christopher Chan, Secretary General-CGA Singapore and 
Mr. Maxwell de Silva-CGA Sri Lanka. Ms. Melissa Kathleen Price and Ms. Laura Deyell also participated at this 
meeting representing Gold Coast Commonwealth Games Organizing Committee.

	 The purpose of the meeting was to discuss the matters arising to the member countries and to brief the 
upcoming games 2017 and 2018.

4.8	 Executive Board Meeting of the Commonwealth Games Federation 
	 The NOC/CGA Sri Lanka had privilege of hosting the Executive Board Meeting of the Commonwealth Games 

Federation (CGF) in Colombo. 

	 The meeting was held in two sessions on 05th & 06th October 2017 at the Hilton Hotel, Colombo with the 
participation of 19 members of Executive Board members representing CGD regions of Africa, America, 
Asia, Europe, Caribbean and Canada & Gold Coast Commonwealth Games Organising Committee members. 
Meetings were headed by Mrs. Louise Martin, President of CGF and Mr. Hemasiri Fernando, Asian Region Vice 
President of the CGF. 

Attendees are; 

Mrs. Louise Martin	 – 	 President, CGF
Miss. Rhona Simpson	 – 	 Athletes Representative
Ms. Cathelina Fortuna Belrose	 – 	 Regional Vice President, Caribbean 
Mr. Darren Glenn Edward Hall	 – 	 Director of Corporate Services 
Mr. Salvatore Coffa 	 – 	 President, CGAus 
Ms. Kereyn Smith 	 – 	 Vice-President (New Zealand)
Dr. Jegathesan Manikavasagam	 – 	 Medical Advisor 
Mr. Mark Anthony Peters	 – 	 CEO, GOLDOC
Mr. Peter Douglas Beattie 	 – 	 Chairman, GOLDOC 
Mr. David Zolkwer	 – 	 Gold Coast 2018 Commonwealth Games Opening and 	

		  Closing Ceremonies Project and Artistic Director
Mr. Christopher John Jenkins 	 – 	 Regional Vice-President, Europe 
Ms. Sandra Kathleen Osborne-Burgess	 – 	 Legal Advisor 
Mr. David Carroll Grevemberg	 – 	 Chief Executive Officer 
Mr. Kalam Azad Juman-Yassin 	 – 	 Regional Vice-President, Americas 
Mr. Bruce Richard Robertson 	 – 	 Vice-President (Canada)

Ms. Miriam Zimba Moyo 	 – 	 Regional Vice-President, Africa 

Mr. Hugh Richard Graham	 – 	 Regional Vice-President, Oceania
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4.9	 ANOC General Assembly – Prague, Czech Republic

	 Mr. Maxwell de Silva, Secretary General of NOC Sri Lanka attended the ANOC General Assembly held in 

Prague, Czech Republic on 2nd & 3rd November 2017.

5.	 ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

5.1	 Our thanks are due to the Hon. Minister of Sports and the Officials of the Ministry on the cooperation and support they have 

given to the NOC in every aspect of its work. 

5.2 	 Our thanks are also due to the President - IOC, the President - OCA and various officials of these institutions 

which have been of great assistance to us during the year. Special mention should be made of the cooperation 

and assistance given by the staff of the Olympic Solidarity division of the IOC. 

5.3 	 Our grateful thanks are also due to those institutions that helped us through sponsorships for various 

programmes and projects. 

5.4 	 Our thanks are once again due to members of the Media. 

5.5 	 Our thoughts are also on those institutions and individuals who have rendered yeoman service to the NOC. 

We are most grateful to them. 

Maxwell de Silva 
Secretary General 
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The Chairman 

Sri Lanka National Olympic Committee. 

Report of the Auditor General on the Financial Statements of  Sri Lanka National Olympic Committee for the year ended 31 

December 2017  

The audit of financial statements of the Sri Lanka National Olympic Committee for the year ended 31 December 2017 

comprising the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017 and the statement of income, statement of changes 

in equity and cash flow statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other 

explanatory information, was carried out under my direction in pursuance of provisions in Article 154 (3) of the Constitution 

of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka read in conjunction with Section 9 of the Sports Act ( Amendment ) No. 47 

of  1993 . My comments and observations which I consider should be published with the Annual Report of the Committee 

appear in this report.  

1.2	 Management Committee’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

	 Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 

with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards for Small and Medium Sized Enterprises and for such internal control as the 

management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 

misstatements whether due to fraud or error. 

1.3	 Auditor’s Responsibility  

	 My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based in my audit. I conducted my audit 

in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards consistent with International Auditing Standards of Supreme 

Audit Institutions (ISSAI 1000-1810). Those Standards require that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and 

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial Statements are free from material 

misstatements.  

	 The audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 

financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the 

risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 

assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Committee’s preparation and fair presentation 

of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for 

the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Committee’s Internal Control. An audit also includes 

evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made 

by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of financial statements.  

	 I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

CAS/A/NOC/01/17/05 14 March 2019
Tfí wxlh
ckJ ,y.

Yours No.

Èkh
jpfjp.

Date.

udf.a wxlh
vdJ ,y.

My No.
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1.4 	 Basis for Qualified Opinion 

My opinion is qualified based on the matters described in Paragraph 2.2 of this report.

2.	 Financial Statements

2.1.	 Qualified Opinion

	 In my opinion, except for the effects of the matters described in 2.2 of this report, the financial statements give  a 

true and fair view of the financial position of the Sri Lanka National Olympic Committee as at 31 December 2017 and 

its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards 

for Small and Medium Sized Enterprises. 

2.2   Comments on Financial Statements

2.2.1   Sri Lanka Accounting Standards for Small and Medium Sized Enterprises 

	 The following observations are made.

(a)	 Although it had been  mentioned as the revenue and expenditure should not be set off  in the preparation of 

financial statements, except in the case of permitted standards according to Paragraph 2.52 in Chapter 2 of Sri 

Lanka Accounting Standard for Small and Medium Sized Enterprises, the losses on fixed asset sales amounted to  

Rs. 305,406  had been shown by setting off to  other income during the year under review.

(b)	 The present value of the gratuity provision in accordance with Paragraph 28.15 of Chapter 2 of Sri Lanka Accounting 

Standard for Small and Medium Sized Enterprises had  not been identified and the allocation for gratuities  amounted 

to of   Rs. 1,635,112 based on the half of the monthly salary for the each year from the commencement date for the 

staff of the Committee had been taken in to accounts under the liabilities.

2.2.2 	 Accounting Deficiencies

	 The following observations are made.

(a)	 As a  result of non-depreciation of assets  purchased from the donation of Rs 3,093,635 that had received from the 

Asian Olympic Committee, the depreciation of the fixed assets had been understated  by a sum of Rs. 593,918 .

(b)	 The land in extent 1 rood and  20 perches alienated to the Head Office of National Olympic Committee in the year 

2005 as per  a Cabinet Decision had not been assessed and  taken into accounts.

(c)	 As a result of understating  of the provision  for income tax for the year under review by Rs. 204,600,  the income tax 

expense and accrued income tax had been understated by the same value.

(d)	 A sum of Rs. 6,878,916 that had to be paid to the Department of Sports Development had not been shown  in the  

financial statements.

2.2.3 	 Unexplained Differences

The following observations are made.

(a)	 As per the financial statements of the year, the balance receivable from the Ministry of Sports was  Rs. 2,110,949  and 

thus it was  Rs. 926,554 as  per the accounts  of the Ministry, there was a difference of Rs. 1,184,395 .
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(b)	 As per  the financial statements of the year, the balance receivable from the Department of   Sports Development 

was Rs. 640,906 and thus it was Rs. 9,614,817 according to   the Departmental Accounts,  there was a difference of  

Rs. 8,973,911 .

2.2.4  Lack of Evidence for  Audit

The evidences shown against the following Items of Accounts had not been made available in audit.

 Item of Accounts 
Value 

Evidences not made available
Rs.

(a) Group Assistance Grant Project for the Sri Lanka 

Basketball Federation

(i) Purchasing of  Basketballs  68,000 

Bills(ii) Expenses on  purchasing of  food and water        102,000 

(iii) Accommodation and foods expenses        831,000 

(iv) Payments for Trainers        220,000 Registers for confirmation of 

signatures as the money was received

(b) Funds given to the Sri Lanka Volleyball Federation 

Coaches' Project

       264,096 The receipt issued by the Association 

as the money was received

(c) Trade and other balances  receivable        352,611 Balance confirmation letters 

(d) Trade and other balances of payable        189,165 Balance confirmation letters

(e) Property Plant and Equipment 174,775,158 Annual Board of Survey Reports

(d) Grants received  from the International 69,447,310 Confirmation letters on Grants and 

Bank Credit Notes for Rs. 168,079Olympic committee the Asian Olympic Committee

and other agencies

   

2.3	 Account Balance Receivable

	 Actions had not been taken to recover a sum of Rs. 173,603 recoverable from  an external  private institution  for a 

period of 6 years.

2.4	 Non-compliance with  Laws, Rules, Regulations and Management Decisions

	 A Procurement Plan and a Procurement Timetable had not been prepared for the year 2017 by the Committee in 

terms of Sections 4.2.1 and 4.2.2 of the Procurement Guidelines 2006.

3.	 Financial Review

3.1	 Financial Results

    	 According to the financial statements presented, the financial result  of the Sri Lanka National Olympic Committee 

for the year ended 31 December 2017  was a deficit of Rs. 664,763 and thus the surplus of the preceding year as 

against to that was Rs. 3,740,138 , a deterioration of the financial result amounted to Rs. 4,404,901 had been shown 

in the year under review.  Even though the expenditure of the year under review had decreased by a sum of Rs. 

88,743,722,  the decrease in the income by  a sum of Rs. 93,148,623   had mainly attributed to the deterioration  in 

above  financial results.



44

National Olympic Committee of Sri Lanka

www.olympic . lk

AU
D

IT
O

R'
S 

RE
PO

RT

4.	 Operating Review

4.1	 Performance 

	 (a) Actions not taken  as per Directives

	 The Sri Lanka National Olympic Committee was established on 08 April  1937 and the membership of the International 

Olympic Committee had  been obtained in the same year. After preparation of the provisions relating to  legal 

procedure of the Committee from the Section 18 to Section  21 of the Sports Act No. 25 of 1973 and thereafter, those  

Provisions had been amended at two instances. Necessary Directives and revised Directives had been  enacted with 

regard to the National Olympic Committee made by the Minister under Section 41 of the Act, read in conjunction 

with Section 19 of the Sports Act No 25 of 1973 . Even though the Quarterly Reports in respect of all funds, equipment 

and other resources received to   the Committee through local or foreign channels and according to the Directive  

No. 8 (a) and the reports on matters pertaining to activities executed by the Committee within each Quarter  in terms 

of Directive 8 (b)  should  be provided to the Minister, the information  were not confirmed in audit  whether the  

actions were taken in  order to that Directive.

       	 The audit had been informed by the Secretary General of the Sri Lanka National Olympic Committee on 20  February  

2019 that the Attorney General's opinion had been consulted with regard to the Sports Act and the independence 

of the Sri Lanka  National Olympic Committee.

(b)	 Providing Money for Sports Federations

(i)	 Due to the reasons such as failing to apply for funds by the Letter Heads of the Sports Association , failure to 

provide confirmation as the payment were made for  International Membership fee, Annual Action Plan, non  

-submission of previous year audited accounts and the Performance Reports of the preceding year , the total 

amount of funds donated to the Committee  by the International Olympic Committee Members to distribute 

among the member associations  totalled to  Rs. 3,297,111  had not been  distributed to 15 National Sports 

Associations.

(ii)	 The International Olympic Committee had given a sum of 18,300 US $ (Rs. 2,421,830) as advances to the 

National Olympic Committee for conducting the Hockey Tournaments of the Sri Lanka Hockey Federation in 

the year 2015 and 2016. Because of the elections of the Sri Lanka Hockey Federation had not been carried 

out , the activities of the that Federation  had been placed under control of the Director General of the 

Department of Sports Development and  since the activities of the Federation had been implemented by 

the Interim Committee, this donation had  not been given to the Hockey Federation. The Committee had not 

taken actions even  to aware the Director General of the Department of Sports Development regarding the 

Funds that had not been allocated to hold Hockey Tournaments.

4.2	 Management activities 

Following observations are made. 

(a) 	 The Rules and Regulation Code of the Staff Loans issued by the Committee had not been  endorsed by 

the Executive Committee of the Committee and actions had not been taken even by 31 December 2018 to 

recover the staff loan amounted to Rs. 692,860 and the interest thereon amounted to Rs 43,874 receivable 

from 03 officers who had  resigned from the service of the  Committee during the year under review. 
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(b)	  It had been entered in to an agreement on 14 November 2014  for the purchase of software for 30,000 US $ 

from an American consulting firm in New York to collect data of athletes and to provide information without 

following  the procurement procedure and without obtaining permission from the Executive Committee 

and without finding whether there was a possibility to buy as locally. Out of the  30,000 US $  received from 

the International Olympic Committee for that,  a sum of  22,500 US $  in 2015 and  a sum of  7,500 US $  in 

the year under review had been  paid to the Olympic Consultancy  Institute. The matters such as software 

maintenance and services, software installation and maintenance institution, the possibility of occurring 

software changes in future, obtaining of facilities at the  closure of the software supplier institution had 

not been included in the purchase agreement entered in to with  the Olympic Committee and the Service 

Provider.  The Consultancy Institute had informed the National Olympic Committee on  04 April  2018  as  

a sum of 7,500 US $  was receivable for annual maintenance works and updating activities that had not 

included in the Agreement relating to the 2017-2018 period . Due to non-payment of those charges, the 

software had been  disconnected on 14 August 2018 by the Consultancy Institution. Further, the collection of 

all players' data and providing information had not been  not carried out  during this period.

(c) 	 The Restaurant belonging to the Committee had been leased out to a private company for a period of five 

years from the 01 November 2016 to a selected lessee  without following the Procurement Procedure  and a 

sum of Rs. 360,000 per month for  the first three years,  a sum of  Rs. 375,000 for the 4th year and a sum of  

Rs. 390,000 for the 5th year had to be paid monthly by the lessee as per the Lease Agreement. Even though 

the lease agreement entered in to with the lessor  on 27 January 2017 had been submitted to the office of 

the Registrar of Lands  on 08 February 2017 for registration,  the Lease Agreement had been rejected by the 

Registrar of Lands on 12 April 2017. The liquor sales license obtained by the Committee had been given for 

the Restaurant and a sum of Rs. 998,500 in the year under  review to renew that  license and a sum of Rs. 

133,200 had been paid to the Department of Excise obtaining from the lessee in the years 2016 and 2018 

as Settlement Fees for the suspension / cancellation notice. This payment was not included in the financial 

statements of the Committee.

(d)	 The electricity facility had been obtained from one electricity meter for the entire building that had been 

leased by the Committee including the Restaurant and Body Building Centre  and  no separate meters had 

been fitted for it. Even though the electricity cost of amounted to Rs. 4,412,446 for the year under review had 

been divided among these 3 divisions, none of these schedules had been submitted to the audit.

(e)	 Thirteen  body building  equipment cost at  Rs. 10,519,450 which  were  fully depreciated  and  not obtained 

recommendations to dispose from an Annual Board of Survey and  not obtained  a proper valuation report 

had been  leased out to the Body Building Centre private institution belonging to the Committee in the year 

2016 .  Only a sum of  Rs. 300,000 had been provided to the Committee by the relevant institution after a 

one year delay for this. As a result, the favorable situation which could be able to obtain from disposal of the 

relevant equipment had been avoided by the Committee.  In addition, 26 years old fully depreciated Body 

Building Equipment that were 09 years old  amounted to  Rs. 9,998,727 had been provided for the use of the 

Private Institution which is being maintained by the  Body Building Center without any levy.

(f)	 Despite a sum of 10,000 US $ (Sri Lankan Rupees 1,425,159) per each had been paid to the Chairman of the 

Committee and the Chief Secretary of the Committee for traveling expenses and accommodation expenses 

on 14 March 2016 for the participation of Rio Olympic Games  held in the year 2016  as per  a Report of 

the International Olympic Committee (Olympic Games Subsidies),  the Committee had spent a sum of Rs. 
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791,690 for the Chairman and a sum of  Rs. 1,064,018 for the Chief Secretary during the year 2016. Later on, 

the money which  had received by officers earlier were retained for more than a year period and paid back 

to the Committee on 06 April 2017 and 04 December  2017 .

4.3	 Transactions of contentious  Nature

The following matters were observed.

(a)	 For the purpose of printing and supply of 2000 souvenirs at a cost of Rs. 5,200,000 in parallel to the 75th 

Anniversary of the Sri Lanka Olympic Committee in the year 2013, a private institution had been selected 

deviating from the procurement process and the contract had been awarded without being entered into 

an agreement. . As a 50 per cent advance of the contract value, a sum of Rs.2,600,000 had been paid on 30 

September 2013 for that purpose. Even though this matter was pointed out by the previous  Auditor General's 

Reports, actions had not been taken perform that activity or  to collect the value of the advance from the 

contractor even by 30 November 2018 . “ The Treasurer of the Committee had informed the audit  that it was 

expected to set off this  advance payment whilst  printing of the souvenirs relating to 80th Anniversary which 

would be held on the year 2019 by the Sri Lanka Olympic Committee in this regard ".

(b)	 It was observed that the  signatures that had  made for the three invoices issued from a private institution for 

the garments purchased from that private institution amounted to  Rs. 153,450  by the   Sri Lanka Basketball 

Federation under the Group Assistance Grant Project were different from each other. The Bills in order to  

confirm  as the payments occurred were  also not furnished to audit.

4.4	 Staff Administration

The following observations are made.

(a)	 Scheme of Recruitment

	 A proper  Scheme of Recruitment approved by the Executive Committee for the staff of the Olympic 

Committee had not been prepared.

(b)	 Approved Cadre

(i)	 The cadre of the Committee had not been approved by the Executive Committee.

(ii)	 Seven  posts including Chief Operating Officer, Financial and Administrative Manager, International Program 

Manager, Operations Manager etc. remained in vacant for more than 02 years.

4. 5	 Identified Losses

	 The surcharge amounted to Rs.3,154 had been paid at three occasions due to the non-remittance of  membership 

contributions  to the Employees Trust Fund by the Committee .

5.	 Accountability and Good Governance

5.1	 Action Plan

	 The Action Plan should be prepared  based on budget showing the responsibilities at the at the end of year  to be 

confirmed the achievement  of financial and physical targets timely and for the increase of the utilization of the 

provided funds effectively, such a plan had not been prepared. 
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5.2	 Corporate Plan

	 The Corporate Plan should consist of strategies that determine the future direction of the Committee and a 

Corporate Plan incorporating targets that were realistic and achievable for the  performance to be adjusted to the 

fixed targets, had not  been prepared by the Committee. 

5.3 	 Internal Audit 

An Internal Audit had not been carried out during the year under review on the activities of the Committee.

6. 	 Systems and controls

	 Deficiencies in systems and controls observed during the course of audit were brought to the notice of the Chairman 

of the Committee from time to time and special attention is needed in respect of the following areas of control

System Deficiency 

(a) Accounting (i) Setting off expenses to revenue and taking in to accounts.

(ii) Not taking  Fixed Assets into accounts.

(b) Staff Administration (i) Not obtaining approval for a Scheme of Recruitment.

(ii) Not taken actions to  fill up vacancies.

(c) Financial control (i) Not carrying out  sufficient  supervision for  the   expenses from the 

money provided to the  Sports Clubs for projects.

(ii) Failure to take proper action to recover the arrears employee loans.

(d) Procurement Control The Committee had not followed the Procurement Guidelines of the 

Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka for the purchases.

H.M. Gamini Wijesinghe

Auditor General 
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1.	 General Information

1.1	 General

	 The National Olympic Committee (NOC) was inaugurated on 8th April 1937 at a meeting of representatives of Athletic, 

Swimming and Boxing Associations. As resolved on this day, the first meeting of the Ceylon Olympic and Empire Games 

Association was held on 30th April 1937.

	 The National Olympic Committee of Sri Lanka was recognized by the International Olympic Committee (IOC) in the same 

year it was inaugurated 1937. Accordingly to the date of recognition of NOCs by the IOC, Sri Lanka NOC stands at the 6th 

place and is therefore one of the oldest NOCs in Asia.

	 The Registered office of the NOC and the Principal Place is located at No: 100/9F, “Olympic House”, Independence Avenue, 

Colombo 07

1.2	 The Principal Activities and Nature of the Operation 

	 Mission

	 The Mission of the NOC Sri Lanka is to develop Sports in Sri Lanka to be the Leader in Asia and to be a good Competitor in 

the World Sports Arena.

	 Vision

	 The Vision of the NOC shall be to contribute to the building of a peaceful and better world by educating youth through sport 

practices without discrimination of any kind and in the Olympic spirit, which requires mutual understanding with a spirit of 

friendship, solidarity and fair play, while maintaining the highest level of transparency.

1.3	 Date of Authorization for Issue

	 The Financial Statements of The National Olympic Committee of Sri Lanka, for the year ended 31st December 2017 were 

authorized for issue on 31st March 2018.

2.	 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

	 The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.  These policies 

have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1	 Basis of Preparation

	 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards for Small and 

Medium Sized Entities issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka. 

2.2	 Functional and Presentation Currency

	 These Financial Statements are presented in Sri Lankan Rupees (Rs.) and all financial information presented in Sri Lankan 

Rupees has been rounded to the nearest rupee.

2.3	 Going Concern

	 The committee has made an assessment of the Committee’s ability to continue as a going concern and they do not intend 

either to liquidate or to cease it's operation.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND EXPLANATORY NOTES
to the FInancial Statment for the year ended 31st December 2017
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2.4	 Foreign Currency Transactions	

	 Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to Sri Lankan Rupees at the foreign exchange rates at the dates of the 

transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to Sri Lankan Rupees at the 

foreign exchange rate ruling as at the balance sheet date.

	 Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at historical cost at the balance 

sheet date are translated to Sri Lankan Rupees at the foreign exchange rates at the date of initial transaction. Any resulting 

exchange gains and losses are accounted for in the statement of income and expenditure.

2.5	 Income Recognition

	 Income is measured at the fair value of the consideration or receivable, net of bank charges and converting exchange 

rate. Income is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Committee and the 

income can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Income is measured at the fair value of 

theconsideration received or receivable net of trade discounts and value added taxes.

2.5.1	 Rendering of services

	 The Commitee’s Income from rendering of services is recognized in the accounting period in which the services are rendered 

or performed.

2.5.2	 Interest Income

	 Interest income is recognized on an accrual basis.

2.5.3	 Other Income

	 Other income is recognized on an accrual basis. 

2.6	 Expenditure Recognition

	 All expenditure incurred in running of the business and in maintaining the property, plant and equipment in a state of 

efficiency has been charged to expenditure in arriving at the profit for the year. For the purpose of presentation of the 

statement of income and expenditure, the “function of expenses” method has been adopted, on the basis that it presents 

fairly the elements of the Committee’s performance.

2.7	 Income Tax

	 The provision for income tax is based on the elements of income and expenditure asreported in the financial statements 

and computed in accordance with the provisions of the Inland Revenue Act No. 10 of 2006 and subsequent amendment 

thereto.	

2.8	 Property, Plant and Equipment

	 Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated 

impairment losses.

	 Depreciation is charged so as to allocate the cost of assets less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using 

the straight line method when the asset is available for use. The following annual rates are used for the depreciation of 

property, plant and equipment:

ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND EXPLANATORY NOTES 
to the FInancial Statment for the year ended 31st December 2017
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Buildings	 04%

Electrical Equipments	 10%

Office Equipments	 10%

Furniture & Fittings 	 10 %

Gym  Equipment 	 16.67%

Plant & Machinery	 10%

Computers  	 25 %

Motor Vehicle	 25%

General Equipments	 10%

Museum Equipments	 10%

	 An amount equal to the excess of the annual depreciation charges on revalued assets over the notional historical cost 

depreciation charged on those assets is transferred annually from the surplus in the revaluation reserve to the Retained 

Earnings. 

2.9	 Capital Expenditure

	 Expenditure incurred for the purpose of acquiring, extending or improving assets of a permanent nature has been treated 

as capital expenditure.

2.10	 Inventories

	 Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the 

ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs to sell.

2.11	 Financial Instruments - Financial Liabilities

2.11.1	Leases

2.11.2	Financial Leases

	 Leases are classified as finance leases whatever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards 

of ownership of the leased asset to the Company. Rights to assets held under finance leases are recognized as assets 

of the Company at the fair value of the leased property (or, if lower, the present value of minimum lease payments) at 

the inception of the lease. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement of financial position as a 

finance lease obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation 

so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are deducted in 

measuring profit or loss. Assets held under finance leases are included in property, plant and equipment, and depreciated 

and assessed for impairment losses in the same way as owned assets. 

2.11.3	Cash and Cash Equivalents

	 Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short term highly liquid investments 

with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. 

2.12	 Financial Instruments - Financial Assets

	 The company has only other receivables, held to maturity investments and cash and cash equivalents as financial assets. 

ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND EXPLANATORY NOTES 
to the FInancial Statment for the year ended 31st December 2017
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2.12.1 Other Receivables

	 Most sales are made on the basis of normal credit terms, and the receivables do not bear interest. Where credit is extended 

beyond normal credit terms, receivables are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. At the end of 

each reporting period, the carrying amount of trade and other receivables are reviewed to determine whether there is any 

objective evidence that the amounts are not recoverable. If so an impairment loss is recognized immediately in income or 

expenditure.

2.14	 Payables

	 Payables are obligations on the basis of normal credit terms and do not bear interest. Payables denominated in a foreign 

currency are translated in to Sri Lankan Rupees (Rs.) using the exchange rate at the reporting date. Foreign exchange gains 

or losses are included in other income or expenses.

2.15	 Liabilities and Provisions

	 All known liabilities have been accounted for in preparing the financial statements.

2.15.1	Retirement Benefits Obligations

2.14.2	Defined Benefit Plan - Gratuity

	 The Company annually measures the present value of the retirement benefits for gratuity, as per section 28 of Sri Lanka 

Accounting Standards for SMEs. This item is stated under retirement Benefit Obligations in the statements of financial 

position. The gratuity liability is not externally funded.

2.14.3	Defined Contribution Plans - Employees’ Provident Fund and Employees’ Trust Fund

	 Employees are eligible for Employees’ Provident Fund Contributions and Employees’ Trust Fund Contributions in line with 

respective Statutes and Regulations.
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2017 2016

Notes Rs. Rs.

Income 01  93,393,950  181,740,254 

Other Income  2,406,309  7,208,627 

 95,800,258  188,948,881 

Activity Expenses 02  (56,552,510)  (149,719,843)

Administrative Expenses 03  (21,694,282)  (22,681,781)

Other Expenses 04  (16,853,087)  (11,102,097)

Surplus / (Deficit) from Operations  700,379  5,445,159 

Finance Expenses 05  (349,249)  (465,895)

Surplus / (Deficit) Before Taxation  351,130  4,979,265 

Taxation  (1,015,893)  (1,239,127)

Surplus / (Deficit) For The Year  (664,762)  3,740,138 

The Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

STATEMENT OF INCOOME & EXPENDITURE
for the year ended 31st December 2017
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2017 2016

ASSETS Notes Rs. Rs.

Non Current Assets

Property, Plant & Equipment 06  95,547,545  104,800,490 

 95,547,545  104,800,490 

Current Assets

Trade Debtors & Other Receivables 07  15,244,346  15,656,386 

Inventory Assets 08  1,736,819  435,219 

Deposits, Pre-Payments & Advances 09  1,133,730  1,091,543 

Cash & Cash Equivalents 10  87,715,859  84,286,111 

 105,830,754  101,469,259 

TOTAL ASSETS  201,378,299  206,269,749 

FUNDS & LIABILITIES

Accumulated Fund  189,569,115  190,233,878 

Re-valuation Reserve  97,000  97,000 

           189,666,115  190,330,878 

Long Term Liabilities

Deferred Liabilities 11  1,635,112  1,515,335 

Lease Creditors  134,895  1,404,992 

Computer Purchased on OCA Grants  1,494,075  2,087,994 

 3,264,083  5,008,321 

Current Liabilities

Trade & Other Payables 12  5,408,679  5,211,910 

Accrued Expenses 13  3,039,422  5,718,640 

 8,448,101  10,930,550 

TOTAL FUNDS & LIABILITIES  201,378,299  206,269,749 

Executive Committee is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these financial statements &  above Balance Sheet is 

to be read in conjunction with the accounting policies and notes to the Financial Statements

Approved and signed for and on behalf of the Executive Committee.

Surendran Subramaniam Senaka Ranasinghe

President, NOC Treasurer, NOC

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 31st December 2017

NATIONAL OLYMPIC COMMITTEE OF SRI LANKA
“Olympic House”, 100/9F, Independence Avenue, Colombo 7, Sri Lanka

Tel: +94 11 268 4420   Fax: +94 11 268 4429   E mail: natolcom@slt.lk   Web: www.srilankaolympic.org
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 Accumulated  

 Fund 

Rs.

Balance as at 1st January  2016.  186,493,741 

Surplus for the Year  3,740,138 

Balance  as  at  31st  December  2016.  190,233,878 

Balance as at 1st  January  2017.  190,233,878 

Deticit for the year  (664,763)

Balance  as  at  31st  December  2017.  189,569,115 

The Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS & RESERVES
for the year ended 31st December 2017
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2017 2016

Rs. Rs.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Surplus / (Deficit) Before Taxation  351,130  4,979,265 

Adjustments 

Depreciation  10,359,388  11,439,403 

Gratuity written back  -  (33,283)

Gratuity Provision  377,277  403,605 

Profit or loss on Disposal of Vehicle  305,406  (5,808,750)

Interest Income  (7,434,551)  (4,480,856)

Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes  3,958,650  6,499,383 

(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Debtors & Other Receivable  412,039  (3,486,675)

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventory Assets  (1,301,600)  - 

(Increase)/Decrease in Deposits, Pre-Payments & Advances  (42,186)  711,473 

Increase/(Decrease) in Trade & Other Payables  196,769  (1,343,864)

Increase/(Decrease) in Accrued Expenses  (2,481,755)  2,231,706 

 741,918  4,612,023 

Gratuity Paid  (257,500)  (99,520)

Income Tax Paid  (1,213,356)  (1,275,004)

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities  (728,938)  3,237,499 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Acquisition of Property, Plant & Equipment  (2,033,468)  (1,163,662)

Interest Income  7,434,551  4,480,856 

Sales Proceeds of Motor Vehicle  27,700  5,808,750 

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities  5,428,783  9,125,944 

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Payments to Lease  Creditors  (1,270,097)  (1,122,429)

Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities  (1,270,097)  (1,122,429)

Net Changes in Cash & Cash Equivalents  3,429,748  11,241,015 

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the year  84,286,111  73,045,097 

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the End of the year (Note A)  87,715,859  84,286,111 

NOTE  A - CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash in hand  205,000  30,000 

Commercial  Bank of Ceylon PLC - Savings Account  14,735,216  21,423,047 

Commercial  Bank of Ceylon PLC - Current Account  83,950  (1,214,489)

Nations Trust Bank  101,745  101,745 

Peoples Bank - Current Account  100,000  - 

Peoples Bank - Town hall Branch  15,300,842  12,415,460 

Peoples Bank - RFC  17,189,107  11,530,348 

Fixed Deposits  40,000,000 

 87,715,859  84,286,111 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
as at 31st December 2017
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NOTE 01. INCOME

 2017 2016

Note 01.1 Subsidies  Rs. Rs.

Annual  Administration Subsidy-IOC  6,799,970  6,950,115 

Annual Activity Subsidy-OCA  15,167,475  7,174,715 

Top Programme  -    2,954,348 

 21,967,445  17,079,178 

Note 01.2 Member Federations Income

Annual Members’ Fee  25,000  27,000 

 25,000  27,000 

Note  01.3 - Interest Income

Money Market Account -Commercial Bank  1,891,357  949,683 

RFC A/Cs Savings Account -Peoples Bank  1,189,735  346,583 

Fixed Deposits & Other Banks  4,353,459  3,184,589 

 7,434,551  4,480,856 

Note  01.4 - Rental Income

Restaurant  4,320,000  4,320,000 

Gymnasium  4,200,000  4,272,515 

Auditorium & Halls  2,127,850  2,432,250 

 10,647,850  11,024,765 

Note  01.5 - Projects Income

Excess on Airfare & Foreign Tours  -  5,130 

Games & Activities  53,319,104  149,123,324 

  53,319,104  149,128,454 

Note 01.6 - Other Income

Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets  (305,406)  5,808,750 

Miscellaneous Note 1.7  747,903  1,399,877 

Airfare & Visa Fees Reimbursement  1,963,812  - 

 2,406,309  7,208,627 

Note 01.7 - Miscellaneous Income

Exchange Gain  123,015  1,057,736 

Staff Loan interest  31,003  - 

Sundry Income  593,885  342,140 

 747,903  1,399,877 

 95,800,258  188,948,881 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 2017
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NOTE 02 - ACTIVITY EXPENSES 

2017 2016

 Rs.      Rs.     

Note 02.1
6408 NOCSL 75th Annuasary in 2013
Project Expenses  -  1,926,509 

 1,926,509 
Note 02.2
9650.02 National Olympic Acadamy-2016
Project Expenses  1,549,923 -
Traveling and transports  142,251 -

 1,692,173 -
Note 02.3
6430 IT Staff Training 2011
Course fees  - 59,000

 - 59,000
Note 02.4
6432 Continental Athlete SP Grants
Project Expenses  -  6,151,267 
Scholarship Fees  -  1,684,326 

 -  7,835,593 
Note 02.5
9650.03 Baticoloa Tennis Dev. Project
Project Expenses  50,000  3,691,334 

 50,000  3,691,334 
Note 02.6
6458A NOC Special Grants
Project Expenses  -  308,000 

 308,000 
Note 02.7
9650.05 Development ,NSS in Sailing 2014 -
Project Expenses  254,177 -

 254,177 
Note 02.8
9650.06 T/Courses for Coaches in Shooting 2015
Course fees  -  640,983 
Project Expenses  50,000  -   
Printing and Stationary  2,400  -   

 52,400  640,983 
Note 02.9
9650.07 T/Courses for Coaches in Boxing 2015
Course fees  -  50,000 
Project Expenses  398,229  -   
Printing and Stationary  6,000  -   

 404,229  50,000 
Note 02.10
6478 T/Courses for Coaches in Equestrian 2015  115,123 
Traveling and transports  -  115,123 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 2017
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NOTE 02 - ACTIVITY EXPENSES

2017 2016

 Rs.      Rs.    

Note 02.11
9650.10 Advance Sports Management Course 2016/17  
Project Expenses  -    644,158 
Refreshments  124,419  572,034 
Accommodation  -    401,100 
Printing and Stationary  119,500  29,350 
Traveling and transports  9,552  -   
Management fees  150,820  -   
Event Expenses  445,375  -   

 849,665  1,646,642 
Note 02.12
9650.12 T/Courses for Coaches in Volleyball 2016
Course fees  314,096  637,000 

 314,096  637,000 
Note 02.13
9660.1C CWG 2014 -Preparation Grant
Project Expenses  2,910,000  920,000 
Accommodation  132,450  -   
Traveling and transports  -    7,900 
Air tickets and Visa  292,597  237,000 
Event Expenses  110,000  -   

 3,445,047  1,164,900 
Note 02.14
9660.1D CWG 2018 -CGF Development Grant
Project Expenses  349,102  627,399 
Refreshments  -    12,000 
Traveling and transports  25,000  30,000 
Management fees  1,026,351  -   
Printing and Stationary  11,414  14,952 
Event Expenses  2,600,000  -   

 4,011,867  684,351 
Note 02.15
9660.2 Team Support Grant- Basket Ball 2017
Project Expenses  1,097,030  1,324,800 

 1,097,030  1,324,800 
Note 02.16
6524D Rio2016 Preparation Grant, Ministry Exp.
Project Expenses  -  1,769,491 
Air tickets and Visa  -  1,387,000 

 -  3,156,491 
Note 02.17
6526A South Asian Game 2016 - Ministry Expenses
Project Expenses  -  9,168,067 
Refreshments  -  212,153 
Accommodation  -  55,956,246 
Traveling and transports  -  1,297,373 
Air tickets and Visa  -  8,670,816 

 -  75,304,654 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 2017
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NOTE 02 - ACTIVITY EXPENSES

2017 2016

 Rs.      Rs.    

Note 02.18
6528A Asian Winter Games 2017,Sapporo-Ministry Expenses
Project Expenses  596,932 
Accommodation  -  823,241 
Traveling and transports  -  9,046 
Air tickets and Visa  -  734,000 

 -  2,163,219 
Note 02.19
9650.15 CGF Regional Meeting , Colombo
Project Expenses  -    136,105 
Entertainment expenses  -    321,684 
Accommodation  534,766  609,967 
Traveling and transports  25,851  8,000 
Event Expenses  362,974  83,728 
Refreshments  315,397  -   

 1,238,988  1,159,484 
Note 02.20
6530B Asian Beach Game 2016-NOC Expenses
Project Expenses  -  290,400 
Refreshments  -  16,983 
Entertainment expenses  -  36,180 
Traveling and transports  -  3,496 

 -  347,059 
Note 02.21
6426B South Asian Olympic Academy 2015
Project Expenses  -  214,000 
Refreshments  -  153,738 
Accommodation  -  1,338,822 
Traveling and transports  -  160,900 
Printing and Stationary  -  129,158 
Event Expenses  -  527,458 

 -  2,524,075 
Note 02.22
6428 Development NSS in Rowing 2013
Project Expenses  -  452,680 

 -  452,680 
Note 02.23
6455 SAC -Bindunuwewa 2016
Project Expenses  -  123,290 
Accommodation  -  44,800 
Course fees  -  20,900 

 -  188,990 
Note 02.24
6458B High Jump Training -Doha Quarter
Project Expenses  -  412,244 
Air tickets and Visa  -  125,402 

 -  537,646 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 2017
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NOTE 02 - ACTIVITY EXPENSES

2017 2016

 Rs.      Rs.     

Note 02.25
9650.09 NOC Website & Athletes Database
Project Expenses  1,161,934  - 

 1,161,934  - 
Note 02.26
6480 Mr. Karunathilake’s farewell 
Event Expenses  -  751,006.74 

 -  751,006.74 
Note 02.27
6484 Football Friendly Match SL&GN
Project Expenses  -  271,146.46 
Refreshments  -  58,697.60 
Printing and Stationary  -  12,000.00 

 -  341,844.06 
Note 02.28
9650.14 Sports Administration Course 2017
Project Expenses  71,620  203,105 
Refreshments  749,929  971,528 
Accommodation  15,000  -   
Traveling and transports  18,550  -   
Event Expenses  306,266  -   

 1,161,365  1,174,633 
Note 02.29
6492 National Course Directors 2016
Project Expenses  -  170,684 
Refreshments  -  151,582 
Entertainment expenses  -  147,413 
Accommodation  -  1,035,263 
Traveling and transports  -  10,379 

 -  1,515,321 
Note 02.30
9650.16 Olympic Day Run 2017
Project Expenses  -    1,345,008 
Refreshments  321,000  7,868 
Accommodation  258,506  77,078 
Traveling and transports  118,284  33,000 
Printing and Stationary  -    60,361 
Event Expenses  1,798,324  -   

 2,496,114  1,523,316 
Note 02.31
6524A Rio Olympic Game- Ticket Sales

 -  -   
Event Expenses  -  86,625 

 -  86,625 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 2017
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NOTE 02 - ACTIVITY EXPENSES

2017 2016

 Rs.      Rs.     

Note 02.32
6524B Olympic Game - Ministry Expenses
Project Expenses  -  437,160 
Refreshments  -  86,405 
Accommodation  -  390,451 
Traveling and transports  -  168,681 
Air tickets and Visa  -  6,896,249 
Event Expenses  -  38,730 

 -  8,017,675 
Note 02.33
9660.3C Olympic Game - NOC Expenses
Project Expenses  253,123  5,563,494 
Refreshments  -    294,245 
Accommodation  -    630,980 
Traveling and transports  -    109,302 
Air tickets and Visa  -    4,899,991 
Course fees  268,525  -   

 521,648  11,498,012 
Note 02.34
6524E Judo Training Programme -Slovenia
Project Expenses  -  126,902 
Accommodation  -  572,991 
Air tickets and Visa  -  270,400 

 -  970,293 
Note 02.35
6524F RioGame2016 Special Sponsorships
Project Expenses  -  2,927,193 
Accommodation  -  441,442 

 -  3,368,635 
Note 02.36
6526B South Asian Game 2016-NOC Expenses
Project Expenses  -  182,830 
Refreshments  -  116,222 
Traveling and transports  -  -   
Air tickets and Visa  -  61,680 
Event Expenses  -  86,460 

 -  447,191 
Note 02.37
9660.4B Asian Winter Games 2017,Sapporo-NOC Expenses
Project Expenses  168,186  127,045 
Refreshments  30,992  39,959 
Accommodation  123,571  -   
Traveling and transports  4,101  -   
Air tickets and Visa  1,007,035  103,441 
Event Expenses  1,252,140  -   

 2,586,025  270,445 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 2017



National Olympic Committee of Sri Lanka

AU
D

IT
ED

 F
IN

AN
CI

AL
 S

TA
TE

M
EN

TS

65

www.olympic . lk

NOTE 02 - ACTIVITY EXPENSES

2017 2016

 Rs.      Rs.     

Note 02.38
6532A Children’s of Asia -Ministry Expenses  340,350 
Project Expenses  -  312,573 
Traveling and transports  -  11,487,995 
Air tickets and Visa  -  12,140,918 

 -  12,140,918.47 
Note 02.39
6532B Children’s of Asia -NOC Expenses
Project Expenses  -  653,502 
Refreshments  -  36,593 
Air tickets and Visa  -  25,000 

 -  715,095 
Note 02.40
6534 Olympic Game 2020, Samucity , Japan
Project Expenses  -  206,810 
Refreshments  -  122,308 

 -  329,118 
Note 02.41
6535 World Nomad Game 2016
Traveling and transports  -  11,784 
Air tickets and Visa  -  639,400 

 -  651,184 
Note 02.42
9650.08 ITF/OS Coaches Course Tennis2017
Project Expenses  622,700 -

 622,700 -
Note 02.43
9650.11 Advance Sports Management Course 2017/18
Refreshments  221,020 -
Traveling and transports  5,658 -
Printing and Stationary  132,201 -
Event Expenses  195,826 -

 554,705 -
Note 02.44
9660.1E Queens Batton Relay-2017
Refreshments  435,483 -
Traveling and transports  937,514 -
Printing and Stationary  6,688 -
Event Expenses  2,892,813 -

 4,272,497 -
Note 02.45
9660.9A Supporting Grant- Summ. YOG 2018
Project Expenses  2,170,682 -

 2,170,682 -
Note 02.46
966010A Preration for Scholars-Olympic
Project Expenses  910,696 -

 910,696 -

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 2017
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NOTE 02 - ACTIVITY EXPENSES

2017 2016

 Rs.      Rs.     

Note 02.47
9660.1F EB Meeting, Colombo 3-5 October  -
Refreshments  605,338 -
Accommodation  1,978,470 -
Traveling and transports  612,250 -
Printing and Stationary  103,188 -
Event Expenses  2,140,869 -

 5,440,114 -
Note 02.48
9660.8 Commonwealth YG- Bahamas-2017
Project Expenses  39,403 -
Refreshments  629,488 -
Accommodation  2,113,206 -
Traveling and transports  2,300 -
Air tickets and Visa  635,607 -
Event Expenses  536,763 -

 3,956,766 -
Note 02.49
9660.7  Martial Art Game2017,Turkmenist
Project Expenses  -   -
Refreshments  60,972 -
Accommodation  2,968,146 -
Traveling and transports  5,700 -
Event Expenses  880,681 -

 3,915,499 -
Note 02.50
9660.6 Pyeong Chang 2018 - Scholarship
Project Expenses  226,875 -

 226,875 -
Note 02.51
9660.5 Asian Game 2018, Indonesia
Refreshments  6,060 -
Air tickets and Visa  57,000 -
Event Expenses  37,750 -

 100,810 -
Note 02.52
9650.04 SAC- Bandarawela 2016
Traveling and transports  38,000 -
Event Expenses  76,379 -

 114,379 -
Note 02.53
9650.14 Sport Admin. Course 2017
Refreshments  - -
Event Expenses  - -

 -  - 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 2017
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NOTE 02 - ACTIVITY EXPENSES

2017 2016

 Rs.      Rs.     

Note 02.54
9650.17 Inter School Olympic Debate Program
Project Expenses  116,969 -
Refreshments  1,104,977 
Accommodation  73,300 
Traveling and transports  129,571 
Management fees  120,000 
Event Expenses  4,322,455 

 5,867,273 -
Note 02.55
9650.18 NSS In Tables Tennis 2017
Project Expenses  2,159,600 -

 2,159,600 -
Note 02.56
9650.19 Shoes of Hope Programme
Event Expenses  1,669,022 

 1,669,022 -
Note 02.57
9650.20 Sport Adm& Mng Course-Bindun 17
Accommodation  17,710 -
Event Expenses  333,274 

 350,984 -
Note 02.58
9660.1A CWG-2018-NOC Expenses
Traveling and transports  10,062 -
Air tickets and Visa  133,680 
Event Expenses  159,844 

 303,586 -
Note 02.59
9660.1B CWG-2018-Ministry Expenses
Event Expenses  - 

 -  - 
Note 02.60
9660.4A AWG 2017- Preparation Grant
Event Expenses  2,579,563 

 2,579,563 -

Total  56,552,510  149,719,843 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 2017
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NOTE  03 -  ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

2017 2016

 Rs.      Rs.     

Staff Salaries & Wages  3,918,771  5,092,779 

Overtime Payments  750,460  595,760 

EPF  533,028  579,850 

ETF  133,257  144,962 

Labour Charges  47,870  34,346 

Staff Bonus  387,412  388,862 

Executive Staff Allowances  -    28,800 

Consultancy Fees  1,210,502  1,209,600 

Retirement Gratuity  377,277  403,605 

Depreciation  10,359,388  11,147,450 

Staff Welfare Cost  532,781  235,712 

Staff Medical Insurance  252,557  - 

Local Travelling & Subsistence  251,498  105,809 

Telephones & Internet  710,594  861,002 

Audit Fees  75,000  90,000 

Security Charges  766,500  768,600 

Meeting & Other Occasions  720,823  352,273 

Office Cleanings & Maintenance  414,566  383,371 

Rates & Taxes  252,000  259,000 

 21,694,282  22,681,781 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 2017
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NOTE  04 -  OTHER EXPENSES

2017 2016

 Rs.      Rs.     

News Papers                        92,120  95,970 

Magazines & Periodicals  38,864  -   

Postages & Courier Charges  96,178  108,130 

Other Insurance  712,138  644,537 

Printing and Stationary  1,057,288  483,461 

Electricity  1,476,626  1,566,213 

Repair & Main- Buildings  293,368  610,156 

Repair Main- Off Equipment's.  67,191  84,184 

Repair Main- Electrical Equips.  111,754  126,996 

Repair Main- Plant & Machinery  467,728  223,957 

Repair Main- Garden & Premises  9,924  3,440 

Repair Main- Computer Software  77,315  319,409 

Repair Main- Motor Vehicles  429,112  -   

Airfare & Foreign Travel Expenses  3,592,536  3,627,187 

Service Agreements  407,255  389,699 

International Delegations Expenses  272,150  132,519 

Professional Fees  110,700  107,100 

Legal Charges  132,327  89,554 

Advertisement  15,709  78,940 

Gifts & Donations  1,217,390  288,640 

Vehicle Repair & Maintenance  -    1,170,997 

Fuel Expenses  302,982  600,740 

Vehicle Insurance  166,700  168,447 

Penalty & Surcharges  3,154  5,238 

Miscellaneous Expenses  61,578  176,582 

Annul Member Federation Grant  5,641,000  -   

 16,853,087  11,102,097 

NOTE  05  -  FINANCE EXPENSES

Bank Charges  62,778  31,755 

Lease Interest  286,471  434,139 

 349,249  465,895 
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NOTE  07  - TRADE & OTHER RECEIVABLES  2017 2016

 Rs. Rs.

Trade Receivables Note 7.1  2,095,842  2,119,119 
Other Receivables Note 7.2  6,362,855  6,030,449 
Receivable from Local Federations Note 7.3  323,011  288,511 
Receivable from IOC & OCA Note 7.4  2,252,360  3,763,771 
Advances Note 7.5  4,210,279  3,454,536 

 15,244,346  15,656,386 

NOTE  7.1  -  TRADE RECEIVABLES
Catic Engineering  -  42,500 
Fortune Entertainment  969,387  1,152,569 
Jabin Consultancy (Pvt) Ltd  173,603  173,603 
Mr. Niluka Karunarathna  16,700  16,700 
Mr.Jurian Ondatje  -  14,000 
Ultimate Sports (Pvt)Ltd  686,153  707,747 
Zarina Akbarally & Kubra Wahild  -  12,000 
Peoples Leasing PLC  250,000  - 

 2,095,842  2,119,119 

NOTE  7.2  -  OTHER RECEIVABLES
Image wise (Pvt) Ltd  2,600,000  2,600,000 
Department of Sport Development  640,906  12,000 
Ministry of Sports  2,110,949  2,110,949 
Peoples Bank PLC.  1,011,000  1,307,500 

 6,362,855  6,030,449 

NOTE  7.3 - RECEIVABLE FROM LOCAL FEDERATIONS
Amateur Boxing Association of SL  1,000  1,000 
Athletic Association of Sri Lanka.  1,000  - 
Cycling Federation of Sri Lanka  5,000  2,000 
Football Federation of Sri Lanka  1,000  1,000 
Handball Federation of Sri Lanka.  2,000  1,000 
National Association of Fencing SL.  2,000  2,000 
Wrestling Federation of Sri Lanka.  2,000  1,000 
Sri Lanka Aquatic Sport Union  9,500  1,000 
Sri Lanka Archery Association.  1,000  1,000 
Sri Lanka Badminton Association.  1,000  - 
Sri Lanka Basketball Federation.  1,000  - 
Sri Lanka Hockey Federation  3,000  2,000 
Sri Lanka Judo Association  115,218  115,218 
Sri Lanka Taekwondo Federation.  145,793  144,793 
Sri lanka Volleyball Federation.  2,000  1,000 
Sri Lanka Weightlifting Federation.  2,000  1,000 
Sri Lnka Tennis Association  2,000  1,000 
Sri Lanka Triathlon Federation  2,000  1,000 
Yachting Association of Sri Lanka.  1,000  - 
Modern Pentholon  2,000  12,500 
Right to Life  20,500  - 
Table Tennis Association of SL  1,000  - 

 323,011  288,511 
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NOTE  7.4 - RECEIVABLE FROM IOC ,  
OCA & INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTIONS

 2017  2016 

 Rs.  Rs. 

Commonwealth Game Federation  798,870  2,775,900 
National Kung fu & Martial Art Federation  92,600  92,600 
South Asian Game Organizing Committee  -    243,804 
Olympic Council of Asia  482,780  230,900 
Olympic Solidarity  878,110  420,567 

 2,252,360  3,763,771 

NOTE  7.5 - ADVANCES
Staff Festival Advances  12,500  17,000 
Staff Loans  1,791,206  1,889,739 
Advances for Museum Renovation  2,289,823  - 
General Advances  116,750  1,547,797 

 4,210,279  3,454,536 

NOTE  8 - Inventory Assets
Imported Lapel Pins  72,329  435,219 
Plaques  645,140  - 
OCA Coffee Table Book  1,000,000  - 
Technical Course Certificates  19,350  - 

 1,736,819  435,219 

NOTE  09 - DEPOSITS, PRE-PAYMENTS & ADVANCES
Security Deposits  156,500  150,000 
Deferred & Pre-paid Expenses  977,230  941,543 

 1,133,730  1,091,543 

NOTE  10 - CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash in hand  205,000  30,000 
Commercial  Bank of Ceylon PLC - Savings Account  14,735,216  21,423,047 
Commercial  Bank of Ceylon PLC - Current Account  83,950  (1,214,489)
Nations Trust Bank  101,745  101,745 
Peoples Bank - Current Account  100,000  - 
Peoples Bank - Town hall Branch  15,300,842  12,415,460 
Peoples Bank - RFC  17,189,107  11,530,348 
Fixed Deposits  40,000,000  40,000,000 

 87,715,859  84,286,111 

NOTE 11 - DEFERRED LIABILITIES
Provision for Gratuity
Opening Balance  1,515,335  1,211,250 
Provision for the year  377,277  403,605 

 1,892,612  1,614,855 
Payments during the year  (257,500)  (99,520)

 1,635,112  1,515,335 

NOTE  12 -  TRADE & OTHER PAYABLES
Lease Creditors Note 12.1  1,556,568  1,556,568 
Payable to Member Federations Note 12.2  3,497,111  3,330,342 
Refundable deposit-Auditorium Reservation  355,000  325,000 

 5,408,679  5,211,910 
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 2017  2016 

NOTE  12.1  - LEASE CREDITORS  Rs.  Rs. 

Lease Creditors  1,815,996  3,372,564 

Less; Interest in Suspense  (124,533)  (411,004)

 1,691,463  2,961,560 

Current Liability  1,556,568  1,556,568 

Long term Liability  134,895  1,404,992 

 1,691,463  2,961,560 

NOTE  13  -  ACCRUED EXPENSES

EPF EPF Contribution for December 2017  76,099  86,627 

ETF ETF Contribution for December 2017  11,415  12,994 

Income tax Payable Income tax Payable for 2017/18 3rd Quarter  102,300  299,763 

Audit Fees Provision Provision for Audit fees Upto Dec. 2017  418,740  343,740 

Abaya Industries Printing of New year Seasonal Greeting Cards  -    21,500 

Ace International Express (Pvt) Ltd. (TNT) Cost of Courier Charge  -    46,141 

BT Options Purchase of Mac book Pro Computer  -    425,375 

Ceylon Electricity Board Electricity Bill for December 2017  343,888  310,573 

Charles News Papers Agency. News Paper Bill for December 2017  7,600  7,950 

CIOCONAT Lounge Refreshments for 4th Session of ASMC 2017/18  -    39,882 

Dialog Broadband Networks (Pvt) Ltd Dialog 4G Router Bill for December 2017  5,029  5,532 

D. R. Industries (Pvt) Ltd. Purchase of 17 no of Chairs & 04 no of Cupboard  -    284,459 

Dell Holiday Bunglow Meals of Closing Ceremony of NOA 2017  -    32,000 

Department of Sports Development Over Payment of Judo High Jump Training camp in Slovenia  116,784  117,784 

Dialog GSM Dialog Mobiles Bill for December 2017  -    29,004 

Fortune Entertainment(Pvt) Ltd. Lunch for 4th Session of ASMC Course  33,903  310,825 

Holiday Plan Dmc (Pvt) Ltd. Travel Insurance to attend for “GAPS” Programme  -    7,900 

Latest Technology Purchase of 05 no of External USB 3.0 HDD-3Y/W (Hard disk)  -    50,000 

Metrix Computer Services (Pvt)Ltd. purchased of Computers & Accessories  2,500  704,100 

Ministry of Sports. Advance , Balance Payables  1,496,454  1,496,454 

Mlesna (CEYLON) LTD. Purchased Tea Brew Connoisseurs Collection(Gloss)  7,150  21,400 

Mobitel(Pvt) Ltd. SG Mobiles Bill for Dec 2017  7,957  29,395 

Maxwell De Silva Reimbursement of  Hot. Acco. Charg  -    52,187 

Mr. Muditha Jayasekara Muditha Malaka for Months of Scholarship  91,088  91,088 

Mr. S. Selvaraja Reimbursement of Visa Fees & Travel Insurance  19,202  19,202 

Niroshan Enterprises NOC Fuel Bill for the month of Dec 2017  25,848  49,156 

NOC Staff. OT Amount for Dec. 2017  44,800  81,200 

Opeka Janitorial Service Cleaning Service bill for December 2017  28,550  28,500 

Red Force, Security Service Security Charges for the month of Dec. 2017  65,100  65,100 

Softlogic Retail (pvt) Ltd. Purchase of 03 No of DELL Lap tops  -    429,975 

Sprout (Pvt) Ltd. Drinking Water bill for the month of Dec. 2017  2,300  6,719 

Sri Lanka Telecom SLT Corporate Bill for Dec. 2017  24,280  34,204 

Rancrisp Cashew Purchased Burnt Devilled  Nuts Cashew  9,630  17,910 

Ultimates Sports(pvt)Ltd Replace Front Door at Gymnasium in 2nd floor  -    160,000 

Budget Meter Taxi Budget Taxi Fees for Dec 2017  19,930  - 

Artphil (Pvt) Ltd. T-Shirts for SAG 2016  78,875  - 

 3,039,422  5,718,640 
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NOTE  12.2  - PAYABLE TO MEMBER FEDERATIONS
Opening

Balance as at 
01.01.2017

Funds
Allocated

to the 
Federations 

Grants
Collected 

During
the Year

Closing
Balance as at

31.12.2017

Name of the Federation  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

1 Amateur Boxing Associations of SL  304,000  199,000  199,000  304,000 

2 Amateur Rowing Associations of SL  -  72,000  72,000  - 

3 Athletic Associations of Sri Lanka  -  199,000  199,000  - 

4 Football  Federation of Sri Lanka  200,000  399,000  399,000  200,000 

5 Handball  Federation of Sri Lanka  200,300  -  -  200,300 

6 Cycling Federation of Sri Lanka  200,000  199,000  199,000  200,000 

7 National Shooting Sports Federation  200,000  200,000  200,000  200,000 

8 N /Associations of Canoeing and Kayaking in SL  -  199,000  199,000  - 

9 National Associations of Fencing Sri Lanka  200,000  199,000  199,000  200,000 

10 National Gymnastic Associations of SL  -  590,000  590,000  - 

11 Sri Lanka Aquatic Sports Union  200,000  199,000  199,000  200,000 

12 Sri Lanka Archery Associations  -  199,000  199,000  - 

13 Sri Lanka Badminton Associations  -  199,000  199,000  - 

14 Sri Lanka Basketball Federation  33,231  -  33,231  - 

15 Sri Lanka Equestrian Associations  -  600,000  400,000  200,000 

16 Sri Lanka Golf Union  200,000  199,000  199,000  200,000 

17 Sri Lanka Hockey Federation  400,000  -  -  400,000 

18 Sri Lanka Judo Associations  192,811  -  -  192,811 

20 Sri Lanka Tennis Federation  200,000  398,000  398,000  200,000 

21 Sri Lanka Volleyball Federation  200,000  398,000  398,000  200,000 

22 Sri Lanka Weightlifting Federation  200,000  398,000  398,000  200,000 

23 Table Tennis Associations of Sri Lanka  -  199,000  199,000  - 

24 Wrestling Federation of Sri Lanka  200,000  199,000  199,000  200,000 

25 Yachting Associations of Sri Lanka  -  199,000  199,000  - 

26 Sri Lanka Triathlon  200,000  398,000  398,000  200,000 

 3,330,342  5,841,000.00  5,674,231.00  3,497,111 
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NOTE 14 RECEIPTS ON ACTIVITIES 

2017 2016

 Rs.      Rs.     

Note 14.1
8510.04 National Olympic Academy 2016
Received from Donors  2,210,477  -   

 2,210,477  -   

Note 14.2
6432 Continental Athlete SP Grants
Received from Donors  -    5,937,605 

 -    5,937,605 

Note 14.3
6436 Batticoloa Tennis Development Project
Received from Donors  -    3,610,333 

 -    3,610,333 

Note 14.4
6462 Development , NSS in Sailing 2014 
Received from Donors  -    -   

 -    -   

Note 14.5
851024B Olympic Game - NOC Income
Received from Donors  3,921,143  -   

 3,921,143  -   

Note 14.6
6474 T/Courses for Coaches in Boxing 2015
Received from Donors  -    222,143 

 -    222,143 

Note 14.7
6478 T/Courses for Coaches in Equestrian 2015
Received from Donors  -    24,103 

 -    24,103 

Note 14.8
8510.07 Advance Sports Management Course 2017/18
Received from Donors  2,689,450  2,265,526 

 2,689,450  2,265,526 

Note 14.9
6486 T/Courses for Coaches in Volleyball 2016
Received from Donors  -    955,489 

 -    955,489 

Note 14.10
6496 Inter School Olympic Debate Project
Received from Donors  -    6,130,662 

 -    6,130,662 

Note 14.11
6511D CWG 2018 -CGF Development Grant
Received from Donors  -    6,811,000 

 -    6,811,000 
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2017 2016

 Rs.     Rs.     

Note 14.12
8510.15 AWG 2017- Preparation Grant
Received from Donors  2,443,260  -   

 2,443,260  -   
Note 14.13
8510.14 South Asian Game 2016 - Ministry Expenses
Received from Donors  1,189,114  -   
Government Grant  -    82,183,570 

 1,189,114  82,183,570 
Note 14.14
6528A Asian Winter Games 2017, Sapporo-Ministry Expenses
Received from Donors  2,763,353 
Government Grant  -    1,112,350 

 -    3,875,703 
Note 14.15
6490 CGF Regional Meeting , Colombo
Received from Donors  -    1,240,087 

 -    1,240,087 
Note 14.16
6530B Asian Beach Game 2016-NOC Expenses
Received from Donors  -    735,250 

 -    735,250 
Note 14.17
6426B South Asian Olympic Academy 2015
Received from Donors  500,000 

 -    500,000 
Note 14.18
6428 Development NSS in Rowing 2013
Received from Donors  -    1,009,455 

 -    1,009,455 
Note 14.19
6458B High Jump Training -Doha Quarter
Received from Donors  -    100,000.00 
Government Grant  -    412,244.00 

 -    512,244.00 
Note 14.20
8510.06 NOC Website & Athletes Database
Received from Donors  1,138,713  -   

 1,138,713  -   
Note 14.21
6484 Football Friendly Match SL & GN
Received from Donors  -    75,000 
Government Grant  -    150,000 

 -    225,000 
Note 14.22
8510.08 Sports Administration Course 2016
Received from Donors  888,209  219,000 

 888,209  219,000 
Note 14.23
6492 National Course Directors 2016
Received from Donors  -    1,410,122 

 -    1,410,122 
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2017 2016

 Rs.      Rs.     

Note 14.24
8510.10 Olympic Day Run 2017
Received from Donors  2,453,000  861,931 

 2,453,000  861,931 
Note 14.25
851024A Rio Olympic Game- Ticket Sales
Received from Donors  723,123  321,467 

 723,123  321,467 
Note 14.26
6524B Olympic Game - Ministry Expenses
Received from Donors  2,280,257 

 -    2,280,257 
Note 14.27
8510.13 Olympic Game - NOC Expenses
Received from Donors  3,039,262  12,150,276 

 3,039,262  12,150,276 
Note 14.28
6524F Rio Game 2016 Special Sponsorships
Received from Donors  -    2,850,000 

 -    2,850,000 
Note 14.29
851023G CWG - 2018 Travel Grant
Received from Donors  2,928,489  -   

 2,928,489  -   
Note 14.30
6532A Children’s of Asia - Ministry Expenses
Received from Donors  -    10,140,918 
Government Grant  -    2,000,000 

 -    12,140,918 
Note 14.31
6535 World Nomad Game 2016
Government Grant  -    651,184 

 -    651,184 
Note 14.32
8510.03 IT Equipment Purchases
Received from Donors  1,138,713  -   

 1,138,713  -   
Note 14.33
8510.16 AWG 2017 - NOC Expenses
Received from donors  1,573,187 

 1,573,187  -   
Note 14.34
8510.05 ITF/OS Coaches Course Tennis 2017
Received from Donors  1,245,528  -   

 1,245,528  -   
Note 14.35
8510.09 Sport Admin. Course 2017
Received from donors  328,000  -   

 328,000  -   

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 2017
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2017 2016

 Rs.  Rs.

Note 14.36
8510.11 Folk & Forgotten Games 2017
Received from donors  1,706,317  - 

 1,706,317  - 
Note 14.37
8510.12 NSS In Tables Tennis 2017
Received from donors  2,899,204  - 

 2,899,204  - 
Note 14.38
851023C CWG-2014-Preparation Grant
Received from donors  139,877  - 
Government Grant  50,000  - 

 189,877  - 
Note 14.39
851023D Queens Batton Relay-2017
Received from donors  568,510  - 

 568,510  - 
Note 14.40
851023E  EB Meeting, Colombo 3-5 October
Government Grant  2,000,000  - 

 2,000,000  - 
Note 14.41
851018A Supporting Grant- Summ. YOG 2018
Received from donors  5,667,443  - 

 5,667,443  - 
Note 14.42
8510.17 Preparation Grant-Olympic. 2020
Received from donors  2,430,612  - 

 2,430,612  - 
Note 14.43
8510.19 Commonwealth YG- Bahamas-2017
Received from donors  2,344,655  - 
Government Grant  640,906  - 

 2,985,561  - 
Note 14.44
8510.20 Martial Art Game2017, Turkmenist
Received from donors  3,020,467  - 
Government Grant  2,980,253  - 

 6,000,720  - 
Note 14.45
8510.21 PyeongChang 2018 - Scholarship
Received from donors  904,192  - 

 904,192  - 
Note 14.46
8510.22 Asian Game 2018, Indonesia
Received from donors  57,000  - 

 57,000  - 

Total  53,319,104  149,123,324 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 2017
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LKR : ‘000

Description Note 
No:

2019
Budget

2018
Actual VARIANCE - %

Income 1  177,021  138,109 28%

 177,021  138,109 28%

Administration Expenses 2  24,457  16,578 48%

Other Operating Expenses 3  23,843  12,559 90%

Depreciations 4  14,434  12,718 13%

Project Expenses 5  109,546  86,556 27%

Committee Expenses 6  1,207  - 0%

 173,488  128,411 35%

Surplus /(Deficits) From Operation  3,534  9,698 -64%

Finance Expenses 7  880  905 -3%

Surplus/(Deficit) After Finance Cost  2,653  8,793 -70%

Income Tax 8  2,540  1,188 114%

Income Over Expenses  114  7,605 -99%

The Annual Budget 2018 and its related summaries ,Schedules , calculations & assumptions are taken to the consideration are 
Correct to the best of our knowledge 

__________________________ __________________________

Accountant Secretary

Approved on behalf of the Executive Committee. 

__________________________  __________________________

President  Treasurer 

BUDGET INCOME & EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT 
ANNUAL BUDGET 2019
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EVENT VENUE TIME PERIOD

NOC Piritha 2018 Olympic House 11 January

1st Winter Children of Asia International Sports Games Sakhalin, Russia 9-16 February

Relaunching of NOC SL Official Website Olympic House, Colombo 27 February

Diploma Awarding Ceremony of ASMC 2017/2018 Olympic House, Colombo 28 February

SAOC Meeting Bangkok, Thailand 1 March

OCA EB meeting Bangkok, Thailand 2 March

38th OCA General Assembly Bangkok, Thailand 3 March

ACOLOP General Assembly Maputo, Mozambique 8 March

International Coaching Course in Badminton Budapest, Hungary 18 March - 07 June

Training in USA - High Performance Committee Phoenix, USA 19 March - 16 April

Development of National Sport System - Training 
Programme for athletes & coaches in Baseball March 2019 - February 2020

ANOC Culture and Education Commission Sochi, Russia 25-26 March

Olympic Scholarship for Athletes - Training in Japan Japan Dates to be confirmed 

NOC SL AGM Olympic House, Colombo 30 April

Chef de Mission Meeting of 1st ANOC World Beach 
Games San Diego, California 7-10 April

9th International Athletes Forum Lausanne, Switzerland 13-15 April

2019 International Sports Affairs Training Course Taipei, Taiwan 26-29 April

1st Sport Administrator Course Colombo 25-28 April 

Meeting of XXIII South Asian Games Kathmandu, Nepal May

OS/OCA Regional Forum 2019 Bahrain to be confirmed

CGF Asian Regional Meeting Singapore 1-4 May

7th Advanced Sport Management Course - Session I Colombo May

15th Joint International Session for Presidents or 
Directors of NOAs Olympia, Greece 10-17 May

Oversea Visit for OVEP Winners 2017 Athens / Olympia, Greece 01-07 June

Olympic Marketing Seminar 2019 Budapest, Hungary 04-06 June

Track & Field Coaching Diploma by German Athletics 
Association Mainz, Germany 1 June 2019 - 31 July 2020

EVENT CALENDAR 2019
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Olympic Day Run Polhena, Matara 24-25 June

2nd Sport Administrators Course Colombo 25-28 July

ATPC - IOC Medicine Course Tokyo, Japan 1 - 3 July

Asian Skate Boarding Youth Camp Nanjing, China 28 July - 10 August

7th Advanced Sport Management Course - Session II TBC TBC

Chef de Mission Meeting of 2020 Tokyo Olympics Tokyo, Japan 19-23 August

Bindunuwewa Teachers Training Programme Bindunuwewa TBC

Chef de Mission Meeting of XXIII South Asian Games Kathmandu, Nepal TBC

59th International Session for Young Participants Olympia, Greece 1-15 June

2019-2020 Dream Together Master Programme-Seoul 
National University Seoul, Korea

International Coaching Course Budapest, Hungary to be confirmed

Visit of Sammu City Delegation to be confirmed to be confirmed

CGF General Assembly 2019 Kigali, Rwanda 02-06 September

ANOC General Assembly San Diego, California 8-10 October

1st ANOC World Beach Games San Diego, California 10-14 October

Sport Administrators Course Colombo 24-27 October

7th Advanced Sport Management Course - Session III to be confirmed to be confirmed

Bindunuwewa Teachers Training Programme Bindunuwewa to be confirmed

OCA Incheon Vision 2014 Program - Wrestling Korea September 

Training Program in China focusing South Asian Games to be confirmed

7th Advanced Sport Management Course - Session IV to be confirmed to be confirmed

4th Asian Athletes’ Forum to be confirmed to be confirmed

Lusofornia Games to be confirmed

National Olympic Academy Bandarawela November 

Dream Programme 2019 PyeongChang, Korea to be confirmed

Macau International Galaxy Marathon 2019 Macau December

XXIII South Asian Games Kathmandu, Nepal 1-10 December

EVENT VENUE TIME PERIOD

EVENT CALENDAR 2019
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1.	 Policy Statement

It is the responsibility of the sports community to identify and prevent sexual harassment and abuse from occurring and develop 

a culture of dignity, respect and safety in sports. Thus the policy mainly aims to promote and protect the health of all athletes, by 

creating a safe and mutually respectful sports environment by promoting rights, well-being and protection of all athletes, coaches, 

administrative officials, volunteers and staff as it is in such conditions that an athlete would optimize their performances.

It also allows the National Olympic Committee of Sri Lanka (“NOCSL”) to maintain impartial and fair proceedings when a complaint/

allegation of sexual harassment and abuse is made to enable and empower the relevant inquiring committee to prescribe 

disciplinary, penal or other appropriate measures.

2.	 Application of Policy 

This Policy shall apply to all athletes coming under the purview of a national sports federation affiliated to an international 

federation governing a sport included in the program of the Olympic Games or any other multi-games recognized and coming 

under the purview of the NOCSL from time to time. 

3.	 Identifying the Problem

Sexual harassment and abuse in sports mainly arise from abuse of power by a person in authority although co-athletes could 

also be identified as perpetrators. It is important to note the distinction between sexual harassment and sexual abuse. Sexual 

harassment refers to a sexualized verbal/ non-verbal or physical behavior towards an individual or group which constitutes an 

abuse of power and trust that is considered by the victim or a bystander to be unwanted or coerced. Sexual abuse on the other 

hand involves any sexual activity where consent is not or cannot be given1. The risk of sexual harassment is much greater when 

there is lack of protection, high motivations of the perpetrator and the athlete’s vulnerability due to age and maturity.

For example the following unwelcome acts or behaviors could be construed as constituting sexual harassment whether done 

directly or by implication, 

1. 	 Physical contact or advances;

2. 	 A demand or request for sexual favours;

3. 	 Making sexually coloured remarks; 

4. 	 Showing pornography; 

5. 	 Any other unwelcome physical, verbal or non-verbal conduct of a sexual nature2

However it is dangerous to identify precisely the events that establishes sexual harassment as it is a subjective notion and it is the 

impact not the intention that is relevant. This is largely due to the fact that what certain persons consider unobjectionable (which 

only overly sensitive persons would object), may offend certain athletes. Accordingly as long as it is an unwelcome behavior (as 

given in the table below) sexual harassment allegations may arise.

The following are examples (not conclusive and only intended as a guide) of what is generally considered welcome and unwelcome 

conduct:

1	 Consensus Statement
2	 Handbook on Sexual Harassment of Women at Work Place
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UNWELCOME WELCOME

Feels Bad Feels Good

One sided Reciprocal

Feels powerless In control

Power based Equality

Unwanted Wanted

Illegal Legal

Invading Open

Demeaning Appreciative

Causes anger/sadness Happy

Causes negative self esteem Positive self esteem

Furthermore contemporary sexual harassment and abuse in sports involves, 

•	 Gender Harassment- repeated disrespectful treatment of one gender to another which is not sexual in nature

•	 Hazing – abusive initiation rituals which are often sexual in nature (i.e. commonly known and referred to as ragging)

•	 Homophobia- discriminated on account of sexual orientation (i.e. on account of being lesbian, gay, bisexual or transgender)

4.	 Consensual Relationships

4.1.	 Coach and Athlete

The relationship between a coach and an athlete is generally based on the power exercised by the coach over the athlete when 

they are being trained, evaluated, criticized or being praised. Therefore a sexual relationship between these two parties (albeit 

consensual) would be inappropriate due to imminent risk of abuse of power by the coach and sexual exploitation of the athlete. 

Given the fundamentally unequal nature of the relationship3 , voluntary consent on the part of the athlete is also disputable and a 

point for contention.  Furthermore, such relationships could cause conflict of interest which would in turn cloud the judgment of a 

coach. Such perceived unprofessional conduct could be detrimental to other athletes and create an inference of implicitly obtaining 

benefits or undue advantage due to such relationship or what would be perceived as sexual favours.

Therefore it is important to mandate coaches not to have consensual or sexual relationships with athletes (who are trained by 

them or otherwise under their control) as it would compromise the professional integrity of the coach and educational mission of 

athletics4 . For this purpose the NOCSL has incorporates a prohibition clause to negate such relationships and a disclosure clause 

to disclose any previous consensual/romantic relationship with the athlete, duration of that relationship and the current status of 

such relationship.

4.2.	 Co-Athletes

Even though relationships of this nature are not prohibited, athletes are required to disclose such relationships to the administrative 

authorities. The disclosure must contain names of the parties, nature of the relationship (romantic/married), duration of the 

relationship and other relevant details.

3	 Women’s Sport Foundation founded by Billy Jean King, Sexual harassment and sexual relationships between coaches, other athletic personnel and athletes
4	 Women’s Sport Foundation founded by Billy Jean King, Sexual harassment and sexual relationships between coaches, other athletic personnel and athletes



NATIONAL OLYMPIC COUNCIL OF SRI LANKA
SEXUAL HARASSMENT AND ABUSE POLICY

National Olympic Committee of Sri Lanka

www.olympic . lk

97

SE
XU

AL
 H

AR
AS

SM
EN

T 
AN

D
 A

BU
SE

 P
O

LI
CY

5.	 Redress

This provision provides information about who can complain, to whom and what should be contained in a complaint.

5.1.	 Who can complain?

Other than the victim, the following could lodge a complaint in the given circumstances (“Complainant”),

PHYSICALLY INCAPABLE

•	 Complainant’s relative/friend

•	 Co-Athlete 

•	 NOCSL administrative officer

•	 Any person who has the 

knowledge of the incident 

with the complainant’s written 

consent,

MENTALLY INCAPABLE

•	 Complainant’s relative/friend

•	 A qualified psychiatrist/

psychologist

•	 The authority under whose 

care the complainant is 

receiving treatment.

•	 NOCSL administrative officer

If the complainant is dead under whatever circumstances, any person who is aware of such event could lodge a complaint with the 

consent of the victim’s heirs.

5.2.	 What should the complaint contain?5

Date(s)

Timings

Name of Accused 
party

Parties’ working 
Relationship

Complaint Content Description of 
Event(s)

5.3.	 To whom a complaint should be made?

Complaints of sexual harassment and abuse would be received by a Complaints Committee (“CC”) which should comprise a 

minimum Fifty Percent (50%) female representation. Members of the CC appointed by the NOCSL should comprise members from 

5	 Handbook on Sexual Harassment of Women at Work place
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A.	 RECEIPT OF THE COMPLAINT

•	 Receive and acknowledge the complaint.

•	 Convey an empathetic attitude towards the complainant in order to 

maintain a fearless environment to express his/her grievances.

•	 Explore options for formal and informal mechanisms.

•	 Inform the Accused Party about the complaint

•	 Prepare a file

C. INQUIRY 

•	 Provide a fair opportunity for both complainant and the Accused 

Party to present their versions of the incident.

•	 Examine key witnesses.

•	 Underage Complainants will be accompanied by Parent/Guardian 

during Inquiry Process.

D. REASONING

•	 Critically analyze and assess the information gathered during the 

inquiry by applying the relevant law.

•	 Create a timeline to establish the sequence of events.

•	 Compare the similarities and differences within each statement made 

by the complainant, Accused Party and the witnesses.

E. Findings and recommendations

•	 Recommendations based on findings

•	 Prepare a detailed report that contains the decision of the Hearing 

Committee.

B. INTERVIEWS

•	 Conduct interviews separately with the complainant, Accused Party, 

witnesses(if any)

the following:

No. Member Eligibility

1 A former female athlete of repute A former senior female athlete who has represented Sri Lanka at an 
International tournament.

2 2 legal officers Who have in depth knowledge about the acts, policies, and any other 
enactment relating sexual harassment and are committed to the 
cause of women.

3 Member of the women’s committee of 
the NOCSL

A women’s member without any perceived conflict of interest

6.	 Complaints Procedure 

A.	 Receipt of the Complaint

COMPLAINTS 
COMMITTEE 

HEARING 
COMMITTEE
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Upon receiving the complaint if CC is satisfied that:

•	 The Accused Party displayed a potentially improper and/or offensive conduct which would constitute sexual harassment 

in sports;

•	 the behaviour was directed to the Complainant;

•	 the Complainant experienced harm;

Complainant would be directed to meet CC and explore options of formal and informal mechanisms based on the seriousness of 

the complaint.

�� Informal Mechanisms

	 This includes counselling or warning the Accused Party to immediately stop the unwelcome behaviour or appointing 

a neutral person to act as a mediator to resolve the dispute between the parties (such mediator would submit his/her 

recommendation to the CC). However CC must at all times consider the severity of the complaint and must refrain from 

advising the Complainant to resolve the matter directly with the Accused Party.

•	 Formal Mechanisms

	 If the complainant choses or mediator suggests or the serious nature of the complaint calls for a formal redress, CC 

would adopt the process setout above. Moreover the CC members must ensure that there is no conflict of interest. 

Thereafter the CC must inform the Accused Party within ______ days of receiving the complaint and provide the Accused 

Party and opportunity to submit an answer to the complaint in writing within _____ days. Furthermore, the CC must 

create a separate confidential file of the complaint and subsequent documents including the answer of the Accused 

Party (if any), list of witnesses, interviewing plan along with all the relevant enactments, policies and guidelines. 

B.	 Interviews

Interviews of each person must be held separately and in confidence, in order to make sure that the interviewees are not 

intimidated. The following guidelines could be followed when carrying out the interviews,

a.	 Be empathetic while appreciating different versions of facts.

b.	 Explain the interview process and the sensitivity of the subject.

c.	 Ask appropriate questions that enables a clear understanding of the case.

d.	 Choose an appropriate location.

e.	 Record the interview.

f.	 Get the statements signed.

C.	 Inquiry

The inquiry takes place before a Hearing Committee (“HC”) which shall comprise members from the following:

i.	 President or the Secretary General of the NOCSL (ex officio)

ii.	 Chairperson of the Women’s Committee of the NOCSL

iii.	 An official of the Ministry of Sports

iv.	 A retired officer of the Sri Lanka Police not below the rank of Senior Superintendent or alternatively an Attorney at Law 

of the Supreme Court

v.	 An elected representative of the national federation of the sport of the Accused Party
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At the inquiry a fair hearing shall be given to both the Complainant and the Accused Party and allow such party to present evidence 

to support their case. Key witnesses of the case would also be examined. The inquiry before the HC shall be concluded within 

_______________ days unless the complexity of the matter or exceptional circumstances as shall be expressly stated in its Report 

warrant an extended period.

D.	  Reasoning

After the inquiry the HC must:

•	 Identify the substance of the complaint.

•	 Prepare timeline that constitutes a sequence of events.

•	 Compare different versions of facts

•	 Determine on a balance of probability whether sexual harassment or abuse took place or not, by considering relevant 

legislative enactments, policies and guidelines.

E.	 Findings and recommendations

The HC must find whether the complaint must be upheld or not. Based on such finding appropriate recommendations must be 

made.

•	 If the HC decides against the complaint there will be no remedy for the Complainant. However, if it is proved that the 

Complainant made a false or malicious accusation against the Accused Party, disciplinary action may be taken against 

the Complainant.

•	 If the HC finds the Accused Party guilty of sexual harassment, HC has the discretion to recommend penalties according 

to the grievous nature of the wrong doing. This may include a warning, written apology, counselling, suspension or 

imposition of a fine and/or ban from participation in a sport.

•	 The HC may also recommend financial damages to the Complainant on account of: 

-	 Mental trauma, emotional distress caused

-	 Medical expenses incurred

-	 Loss of career, etc. and/or other financial loss

7.	 Action in Terms of HC Findings

The HC shall prepare a detailed Report which encompass a description of the complaint and all the relevant facts and circumstances, 

the procedure followed, relevant laws, policies applicable, findings and recommendations including recommended sanctions if any. 

Such report should be submitted to the NOCSL with copies thereof provided to the Complainant and Accused Party. The NOCSL 

shall take action in consideration of the recommendations of the HC. Where the NOCSL considers it necessary or expedient to give 

full effect to such action the NOCSL may direct and impose such action against the Accused Party through the relevant national 

federation of the sport of the Accused Party. 

All action taken in pursuance of this NOCSL Policy shall be in addition to and without prejudice to any rights and recourse available 

in law to any Complainant and/or aggrieved party.
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